)

. L4 N P

Co DOCUMENT RESUME

@

ED 226 298 . o ©© CG.0l6 491
TITLE : Juveniles and Dangerous Drugs. Hearing before the
- Subcommittee on Juvenile .Justice of the Committee on
. the Judiciary. United States Senate, Ninety-Seventh

Congress. Second Séssion on the Impact of Drugs on
" Juvenile Crime. ' ‘

INSTITUT ION Congress of the U.S., Washington, D.C. Senate
o Committee on the Judiciary. - :
REPORT NO. Senate-Doc-J-97-91 -
PUB DATE 28 Jan 82 . T o _
" NOTE ) 73p.; Available in microfiche only due to small print
. ' size of prepared statements. : ’ ' -
PUB TYPE Legal/Legislative/Regulatory Materials (090) ,~--
: _ .Reports .- Descriptive (141) .
EDRS PRICE MF01 Plus Postage. PC Not Available ‘from EDRS.
," DESCRIPTORS *Adolescents; Clinics; *Delinquency; Delinquency
_Prevention:; Delinquent Rehabilitation; *Drug Abuse;
oy : ~ Federal Legislation; *Government Role; Hearings;

Human Services; Illegal Prug Use; Program
Descriptions; Program Effectiveness; Violence:; Youth

b * . - Problems ° o
IDENTIFIERS Congress 97th; Juwenile Justice System
ABSTRACT ' o

on juvenile crime, include testimony from judicial and law
enforcement personnel and'directors of programs for delinquent
rehabilitation and drug treatment. The scope of the drug/crime
problem is defined and discussed in terms of early delinquent
behavior and the role of the family. The impact of illegal drug
smuggling and dealing, especially as it effectd law enforcement in
the State of Florida, is discussed. The role of government in the
prevention of drug abuse by juveniles is outlined, and several =
treatment programs are described including: Project CARE in Portland,
Oregon; the Yerba Buena program, San Jose, California; programs of
the National Institute on Drug Abuse, e.g., the State Prevention
Coordinators; the efforts of the ACTION agency to mobilize and
support volunteers for drug prevention; Gaudenzia, Inc,, a .
multipurpose human service agency designed to treat substance abuse

and other forms of self-destructive behavior;.and Second Genesis
Inc., a non-profit, residential, therapeutic community' for adolescent

< and adult drug abusers. Federal legislation dealing with court . ~
processes and prisons, Senate Bills 1688 and 1689, are also addressed
by the witnesses. (JAC) 9

-

These proceedings, dealing with the impact'of drugs

-«

. 4

o
. - - .

***********/******'**************************'***.************'*************

*  Reproductions supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made *

* ' "from the original document. *
***********************************************************************

»

/




" HARD cow NOT AVAILABLE

JUVEN[LES AND DANGEROUS DRUGS -

ED226298

HEARING -

SUBCOMMI’ITEE ON' JUVENILE JUSTICE

or TBE 7

COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES SENATE

NINETY-SEVENTH CONGRESS
SECOND SEéSION

-~ ON

THE IMPACT OF DRUGS ON JUVENILE CRIME

JANUARY 28, 1982
Serial No. J-97-91

Printéd for the use of the Committee on the Judiciary

" U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION .
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION
EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION
CENTER (ERIC)

. fﬂm document has been reproduced as
K] received from the person or oganlz-non
- originating it.

[J Minor cthanges have been made to improve
reproduction quality.

¢ Points of view or opinions stated in this docu-
ment do not necessarily represent official NIE
position or policy.

.-..
o
T
O
—i

.‘ o
142
(& )

" US. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
WASHINGTON : 1982

o




COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY

[97thv Congress)
STROM THURMOND, South Cnrolinl,_éhairmn

° JOSEPH R. BIDEN, Ja.,, Delaware ~ *

CHARLES McC. MATHIAS, Ja., Maryland L )
EDWARD M. KENNEDY, Massachusetts

PAUL LAXALT, Nevada

ORRIN G. HATCH, Utah
ROBERT DOLE, Kansas
ALAN K. SIMPSON, Wyoming
JOHN P. EAST, North Carolina

ROBERT C. BYRD, West Virginia b .
HOWARD M. METZENBAUM, Ohio * / '
DENNIS DsCONCINI, Arizona - RN
PATRICK J. LEAHY, Vermont

CHARLES E. GRASSLEY, lowa
JEREMIAH -DENTON, Alabamsa

ARLEN SPECTER, Pennsylvania
VINTON DeVane Linx, Chief Counsel

QueNTIN CroMMELIN, Jr., Staff Director

Q

MAX BAUCUS, Montana
HOWELL HEFLIN, Alabama

SUBCOMMITTEE ON JUVENILE JUSTICE

ARLEN SPECTER, Pennsylvania, Chairman

JEREMIAH DENTON, Alabama HOWARD M. METZENBAUM, Ohio
CHARLES McC., MATHIAS, Jr., Maryland EDWARD M. KENNEDY, Massachusetts

‘Bruce A. Comxn, Chief Counsel

-

an

o

"ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



e
.
z -
CONTENTS - ,
. OPENING STATEMENT
. ' Page
Specter, Hon. Arlen, a U.S. Senator from the State of Pennsylvania, chairman,
Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice .............cooiiiiiilininiii 1
CHRONOLOGIGAL LIST OF WITNESSES
\N.l'uhﬁs&z, owner,“Washington Bullets basketball team.............c.ccc.cccoevvnnnnn. 2
Reno, Hon. Janet, state uttqmeﬂ, 11th Judicial Circuit, Dade Counéy--» Fla....... 5
Durell, Jack, Deputy Director, National Institute of Drug Abuse, é Depart-
ment of Health and Human Services......... SOOI 18
Pauken, Thomas W., Director, ACTION, accompanied by Connie Horner,
deputy assistant Director of policy and planning, ACTION e 30
Milligan, Hon. John, circuit judge, Fifth Circuit of Ohio, representing the
National Council of Juvenile and Family Court J ua?eo ...................................... 37
Grodenchik, Penny, president, Gaudenzia, Inc., Philadelphia, Pa.................» 48
Shankman, Dr. Sidney, executive director and founder, Second Genesis, Alex-
ANATiR, VAo e JE RO .57
B !
/ .
ALPHABETICAL LISTING AND) MATERIALS SUBMITTED
Durell, Jack:
Testimony .............. et ereteeeten s st e s s oA ettt e sttt e ueees fevesseree st asenn . 18
Prepared statemen rrreerererereens 21
Grodenchik, Penny: .
Testimony ............. SO S SO S SO SS R RER R 48
Prepared statement .............co.ooovnccvennncievennns . 49
Milligan, John: ) '
EELIITIOTLY .....oovvivitearerececeeeret st stat et sss ot st saesams st s s s e s e b br e e e e e eas s e b e anassasesnesarasios 317
Prepared SLALEIMENL .............cccocoriurieslecriiien e ssecssns s casess s st snssins 42
Pauken, Thomas W.:
Testimony ......... eeueeeeeeet et te et ettt eh st et et et aere bt etes eRt et e be b et st er et s AR e an s s hb et s sa s e e 30
Prepared statement . 3H
. Pollin, X;e: TEBLUMONY .......co.oianricieas vttt s 2
Reno, Janet:
TOBLIMONY ......oovieetiivieire et tea ettt es st et s st sb e s b es s bast s st snnes 5
Prepared StALEMENt ..............c.ooiuniiiiiiiniiiiiiee e et st ererererens 14
Shankman, Sidney: p
Testimony .............. eveteberes e e erteserestat e R eh R ee e R R AR b st s bR esat s n e enee s e 57
Prepared StREMENT ..ot en bt , 60
' ) amn) s

ERIC - 4 .

Aruitoxt provided by Eic: ” ’




JUVENILES AND DANGEROUS DRUGS

THURSDAY, JANUARY 28, 1982

US. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,
: SUBCOMMITTEE ON JUVENILE JUSTICE,
P .. Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met at 9 am., in room 5110, Dirksen Senate
Office Building, Hon. Arlen Specter (chairman of the’subcommit-
tee) presiding. .

Staf(present: Kevin MilW to the subcommittee.

OPENING STATEMENT OF N.ARLEN SPECTER, A U.S. SENATOR
FROM THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA, CHAIRMAN, SUBCOMMIT-
TEE ON JUVENILE JUSTICE

Senator SPECTER. Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. I would
like to begin the hearing promptly because after the scheduling of
this hearing, a joint session of Congress was scheduled, which .con-
venes at 11 today and will require the adjournment of this hearing
at approximately 10:15. We have a sizable list of witnesses who
have come from far and wide on a very important subject, so I
would like to move right afead. , ‘ -

The subject that we are inquiring into today on the Juvenile Jus-
tice Subcommittee is the impact of drugs on juvenile crime. This 18

" a continuation of our interest, reflected during several hearings we
held during 1981, looking to see if we could identify the causes of
juvenile crime, in an effort to try to direct.our efforts through ap--
propriate, remedial legislation.
- ere is no question about juvenile crime being violent in and of
' itself. -As important, is the fact that juvenile crime can be part of a
(_ cycle, which all too often produces adult career criminals. Il;‘ we can
“.find some way to deal with this problem when the juvenile delin-
quent first begins turning toward unlawful activity, then we could
really make an enormous contribution to solving the problem of
crime in this country. )

It is well recognized that drugs are a major contributing cause of
juvenile misconduct, juvenile delinquency and ultimately juvenile’
crime. The inquiries into the drug problem have been going on for
a very long time, a couple of decades at least, and very little prog-
ress has been made in finding answers to the problems, in terms of
early detection or therapy for the addicts, in terms of investigation,
prosecution and sentencing of the offenders, in. terms of limiting
_the flow of drugs from foreign countries.

It is a vast subject and my sense is that we are in need of a
master plan. A great many of us are working on the problem and

() *
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perhaps this subcommittee can make a mgmﬁcant contnbutlon in
this line. -

Our chief counsel together thh his able staff have lined up an
impressive array. of witnesses today, as usual.

Our first witness is Mr:. Abe Pollin, owner of the Washington
Bullets basketball team. Mr. Pollin, we very much appreciate your
taking the time to join us. I note that you came from Philadelphia
to Washington, and with substantial success. I hope that is a prece-
dent which may be followed by others of us who follow the same
path. We welcome you here. I understand that you have some sig-
nificant experiences with the Washington Bullets, to share with us
in terms of your. own experience not necessarily your winning
streak on the court but perhaps your winning attitude as to how to
solve the problem of drug addiction.

We thank you for joining us. We would be pleased to hear from
you..

STATEMENT OF ABE POLLIN, OWNER WASHINGTON BULLETS
i BASKETBALL TEAM

Mr. PoLLIN. Good morning. I thought it would be appropriate for
me to come this morning because maybe we could add some insight
as to how one deals with the problem of drugs when one is discov-
ered in your family.

We at the Capital Centre, which mcludes the Bullets, the Cap-
itals and the staff of the Capital Centre, consider ourselves the
Capital Centre family, and we try to act in a way that shows that
we really care for each other, and that’s been that way for the last
8 years, since we opened the Capital Centre.

Recently a member of the Washington Bullets, it became public
knowledge that he had been involved and has a problem with
drugs. The management was made aware of this situation not too
many months ago, and we had a meeting with him and with his
advisers, and our tack was-that this was a member of our family
who had problems and that we would do everything and all that
we could to close ranks, if you will, and to aid him and to help him
overcome his problem.

That we have done. His problem became public knowledge about
a month, 3 or 4 weeks ago, I guess, or maybe less than that, and we
have publicly stood by him. We intend to. He.is a very fine young
man and we feel that his problem can and will be overcome.

So we have joined ranks, the teammates on his team and all the
people who are involved with him and who know him, including
his college coach and all his friends, who are rallying behind him
and giving him added support. And we are very hopeful that that
will in fact mean that he will overcome his problem.

Seriator SPECTER. What is there to be learned from the experi-
ence that John-*Lucas has had in terms of getting into the drug
habit? How did it happen?

Mr. PoLLiN. I really do not know, Senator. I do not know how it
happened. 1 think one of the things that John was doing, was
really, I think, kidding himself and kidding the people around him -
for a long tlme and not admitting his problem. I think once he got
to the point of admlttmg his problem and coming out with it, first
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to his teammates, his coach, myself and others, and then eventual-
ly to the general public, I think he was well on his way to the solu-
tion of his problem. I really do not know when and how it started.

Senator Specter. Well, he is quoted in the Washington Post as
saying, “My problem started last year when 1 was depressed about
a K)t of things. I don’t want to keep doing it because it's gotten me
into a lot of trouble. I know now that it’s time for me to make
myself stop.” . : :

Well, if we cannot identify the call@, and of course there are
varied causes with each individual, what can we learn from the
family experience, as you put it, of the Washington Bullets, in
trying to help a family member with this problem? " -

Mr. PoLLiN. I think what we can learn is that if a memUer of our
family gets in trouble, and in this case gets in.trouble with drugs, I
think the thing that wé ought to do is rally, show support, love,
caring, rather than some families, where the member who has
gotten in trouble is sort of shunned aside and put aside. And 1
think that is not the way to solve it.

I think at this point, that particular party who has problems
needs the support and needs the extra love and the extra caring of
people around him, dand I think that is the part that 1 really
wanted to emphasize. : .

Senator SPECTER. Well, that makes good sense. As the owner and
the coach and the players say to him, John, we understand your
problems. we want to help you, then what comes next in terms of
the help?

Mr. PoLLin. I think really it has to come from the inner strength
of John Lucas, which I think he is now displaying. He is under
therapy. He has everybody pulling for. him. verybody is aware of
his problem. And he is doing what he can. I have great confidence
that he will overcome his problem, with all that support. . -

Senator SpecTER. How have the drugs affected him physically?

Mr. PoLLIN. It is amazing from the standpoint of his play on the
court. He has not been affected. He has occasionally, when he has
‘ been involved, he would miss a practice. I think he missed one
game for us. | know in the past he missed some games with his pre-
vious team, the Golden State Warriors, and I think they became
disenchanted with his performance.

Senator SpEcTER. Was that occasion caused by drug usage?

Mr. PoLLIN. The explanation was not drugs, but I would suspect
that it was. I do not think that he admitted it at that time, but as I
say, he has admitted it now.

Senator SPECTER. And you say he has only missed one game?

Mr. PoLLIN. For us, this year, correct.
 Senator SpecTerR. And he has played through on the current

- string of successes?

Mr. PoLLin. Yes, he has played very well. And as a matter of
fact, one of our other players who is the other point guard that we
have is injured, and John, to show the kind of human being he is, -
the other night, two nights ago, we had a very important game
against Chicago. The other player, Frank Johnson, who is the’only
other guard who can play the position, was’ hurt and could not
play, and John, on his way to prictice, was in a rather serious
automobile accident. It cut up his head pretty badly. He needed

7
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stitches in his leg. And to show the kind of stuff that is in him, he
came and played with those injuries and played exceedingly well
and we won the game. - _ \

So he is a very special young man with a lot of courage.

-Senator SPECTER. Have you had any dlscussions with him about
his status as a role model for youngsters? '

Mr. PoLLiN. Yes, I have briefly, and he understands that ath-
letes, either professional or amateur, who are well known and
looked upon as role models by the youngsters, have really a special
place to play in American life, and therefore they have a speclal
responsibility. He understands that.

‘Senator SPECTER. And does he acknowledge a responsibility to
youngsters to try to set an example for them?

Mr. PoLLIN. Yes, he does. v

Senator SpECTER: May I ask you what the response of the NBA,
the league, has been to the problem? Is there any imminent danger
of its acting on the matter?

Mr. PoLLIN. They have interviewed him. They_have their own se-
curity forces and he has spent a day I think last week being inter-
viewed by the Commissioner, and they of course are very aware of
the problem and what it could do. Therefore, they have to be very
cautious. But they have agreed that he would be allowed to contin-
ue playing as long as he is on this special program, which he is on,
to overcome his problem.

I had a personal conversdation with the Commissioner and he
knows of my own interest in the case and he knows of the interest
of everyone in Washmgton who surrounds John and is trying to
help him, so he is allowed to continue playing.

Senator SpectiER. Mr. Pollin, would you have any broader sugges-
tions for this subcommittee as to how to deal with’the drug prob-
lem and juveniles?

Mr. PoLLIN. Well, I would repeat, just from the experience that I
have had with John that obviously he is not out of the woods yet—
I think he will be—but my experience has been that when a person
gets into drug problems, what they need is honesty in admlttmg
the problem, and then when they do that I think what they need is
support from those around them, those who love them, those who
care about them. And I think with the added support and the
added love and the added caring, I think it will go a long way
toward helping them overcome the problems.

Senator SpecTER. Mr. Pollin, are you at liberty to tell us about
the nature of the therapy that John Lucas is undertaking at the
present time?

Mr. PoLLIN. No, I'm not.

Senator SpecTEr. Well, we very much appreciate your coming,
Mr. Pollin. We know how busy ydu are. Although you do not play
any games at 9 am,, and probably do not even practice at 9 a.m.,
we know you have many other things to occupy your time and we
are grateful to you. '

We would appreciate it if you would stay in touch with us - in

\ P terms of the progress of John Lucas.

Mr. PoLLiN. I certainly will.
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Senator SpecTER. And you understand what our lines of interest
are, and to the extent that you canbe of assistance to us, we would
be:very grateful to you. Thank you very much. :

Mr. PoLLiN. Thank you, Senator. - '

Senator SPECTER. I would like to call next the Honorable Janet
Reno, the State attorney from Dade County, Fla. Attorney Reno,
we welcome you here.

I note from your resumé that subsequent to appointment by the
Governor, you have been twice elected to the position of State at-
torney, running unopposed in 1980. I note your law degree from
Harvard Lawngcho'ol and your positions as staff diréctor for the
House Judiciary, Committee of Florida; administrative assistant,

. State attorney for Dade:County; your service on the Governor’s

" Council for the Prosecution of Organized Crime, of which you were

% ~the president; and your participation with the American Bar Asso-

ciation Institute of Judicial Administration’s Juvenile Justice
Standards Commission from 1973 to 1976. A

Ms. Reno, we are focussing on the problems of juveniles and
drugs, but I would be very interested in your views not only on-
that subject, but generally on the problems of violent crime, prob-
lems of criminal repeaters, problems of the importation of drugs,
from the vantage point you have, which is a very unique one. o

STATEMENT OF HON. JANET RENO, STATE ATTORNEY, 11th
" JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, DADE COUNTY, FLA.

Ms. Reno. Thank you, Senator. My mother said nobody ran be- .
cause nobody wanted the job at that particular time. -

I have had an opportunity to review Senate bills 1688, 1689 and
1690 that you have introduced, and I would like to direct my com-
ments to t{lose first.

Senator SpecTER. Thank you.

Ms. Reno. I think they are excellent bills. Street and violent
crime is no longer just a State ppeblem. The career criminal that is
created on the streets of New York becomes our career criminal in
prison in Florida. America is mobile, it is on the move, and I think
the thrust of these bills is excellent for, they recognize these facts.

/ I think they are important also when I look at all the power and
force of the Federal Government and the excellence of U.S. attor-
neys and Federal courts. I wonder, sometimes, why these resources
are not committed to really what is the most serious problem in
America, violent crime. I know it is the most serious problem in
Florida and this morning I come up here and see the Maryland
Legislature is beginning its session with crime again the No. 1
188ue. ) . . ' !

Senate bill 1688 has excellent points, providing for no bail, trial
within 60 days and an appellate decision within 60 days. But I cau-
tion you,and I know that you know that there is not that much
jail space to hold that' many people without bond for 60 days or for
180 days. Court time is limited throughout the Federal courts, at
least in south Florida. With existing resources it will be difficult to

et defendants to trial in 60 days. In terms of appellate decisions, it
is hard toget transcripts from court reporters to get the appellate
decision done within 60 days. - ~

1
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The greatest concern I have about 1688 is the discretion it leaves
with the Attorney General. There is great discretion now in the
US. attorney for the Southern District of Florida. He s&);s no, I do
not want to prosecute a marijuana case of less than 4,000 pounds;
no, I do not want to handle this matter over which I have jurisdic-

_tion; no, I do not want to do that matter over which I have jurisdic-

tion. :

If you combine discretion with the time it takes to get a decision !
from the Attorney General through the Federal processes, you will
never get a defendant prosecuted within 60 days. Particularly
when the bill describes the Attorney General’s decision as based on
Federal interest or special Federal interest, that is' going to be an-
other problem to overcome since too often Federal prosecuters take
a limiting view of Federal jurisdiction. . . ' '

-Senator Specter. Well, on that subject, what concerns do you
have, if any, on the Federal role in dealing with someone' who has

‘twice been convicted in the State courts? The bill is drafted in that

manner to try to alleviate the-problem that rany say it is a State
matter, and to bring in the Federal Government only on a limited
basis, where the States do not act on it, where the Federal authori-
ties decide there is some special interest.

Ms. Reno. I have absolutely no problem with the expanded Fed-
eral jurisdiction at all, but I fear, not from someone like you, but
with the judiciary and the Federal justice system as it is now, they
do not have time to begin to do what they should be doing now
under existing law. And I worry that if a bill is passed without real
punch in it, people will say “Oh yes, the Federal Government is
taking effective action; look at Senate bill 1688.” But for the bill to
have punch and to make a difference, it is' going to have to have
the resources behind it. !

I really like Senate bill 1689 because I think the problem of pris-
ons is critical in America. Again, the Attorney General has the ul-
timate authority. In some staff reports it is indicated that some 300
spaces will soon be available at the maximum security Federal in-
stitution in Atlanta. But I already have at least 22 of those Mariel
refugees from Atlanta in the Dade County jail, and there are a
total of 200 Mariel refugees out of about 1,200 inmates in the main
Dade County jail now. Norman Carlson has called them some of
the most antisocial people he has seen. Our jailers say they have

“never had to deal with people like this.

A Federal court order limits the population of that jail, and yet
the detention of these refugees is a Federal responaibifity that the
Government is not meeting. I consider these refugees to be Federal
prisoners in our jail that the State has to prosecute. They should
be in Federal institutions yet, the U.S. attorney for the southern
district of Florida. would not begin to have the resources to proe-
ecute.

That leads me to what I think in terms of the master plan that
you talked about in the introduction of this hearing. It seems to me
that we have an increase in violence now that will probably contin-.
ue for the rest of this century. Unlike 50 or 100 years ago, we have
increased life expectancies. We also have very serious crimes in
urban areas that we did not know 100 years ago. A criminal could

10




e

/ 7 N
go out and get lost in the frontier if he wanted to before, but it is
rather difficult to get lost now and stop commiitting crimes. v

1 think the Federal Government should earnestly research the
development of regional prisons to house people, such as the recid-
inist you address by these bills. If we combine the efforts and re-
sources of 50 States and the Federal Government to set up 12 or 15
regional prisons for serious career criminals and other dangerous
criminals who deserve to be there most of their lives, it would seem
to me the most effective way to spend our money and provide
prison space. : ‘ ,

Senator Specter. How big should those institutions be, in your

ju%ﬁnent? v A v

" RENO. At the rate we are going in south Florida, they would .

have to be big. My mother says I have a few thousand wel chosen

words about anything, but prison construction and prison stand-

ards, I do not know that much about. - o

~ Senator SpecTER. I ask the question because the current thinking
is that prisong ought to be small, as opposed to the institutions

. which house 2,000, which were in vogue in the/past.

Ms. RENoO. I do not think there is any doubt that a smaller prison
is a more manageable prison. I do not know where you balance cost
effectiveness with security, and I would defer to other people. But,

I think that a regionalization of prisons and an assumption. of some
of the responsibilities for imprisoning career criminals by the Fed- .
eral Government is important. -

I do not think that people realize what impact these life sen-
tences—increased life expectancies—will have on the prison popu-
lation of this country if violence continues to increase as it has. .

I like Senate bill 1690, but I have some reservations. As a State :
and local official, I bristle at the Federal Government saying you .
can’t get that money if you do not do such and such.

Under the concept as proposed, I think it operates at too late a

int in a persons life. I would rather see the bill provide that no

ederal moneys should be distributed to any State until the schools
of that State provide all students with a marketable job skill and
- basic literacy. Why wait until prison? Or if you cannot do that——

Senator SPecTER. I did not understand. You say it is too late in
terms of the sequence of the individual?

Ms. Reno. Right. It is going to be very difficult to give a career

.criminal or a habitual offender or somebody in State prison mar-
ketable job skills in the milieu of a State prison: ‘

Senator SPECTER. So your point is that that requirement ought to
ap&ly to the States—— , :

5. RENO. At the point of schools. You do not get any Federal
money unless you provide for -basic education. I am carrying it to
an extreme, but the second point is if you cannot do that, you could

fall back a step and say that no juvenile court will release a child
~ from supervision, once under their supervision, until they have a
marketable skill and basic literacy.} :

But again, 1 come to my point. Before we start sayin that the
Federal Government has the right to withhold money ause , of
State inaction, the Federal Government, at least in south Florida,
should assume its own responsibilities. Since May of 1980 Dade
County has absorbed 125,000 people from the Caribbedn Basin.

Q . g
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Many of them are diseased and ill. Castro dumped the dregs of his

prisons and mental hospitals into our midst: Our hospitals, schools,

social services, and law enforcement agencies are stretched to the
breaking point. We consider it clearly a Federal problem, but the

taxpayers of' Dade County for the most -are bearing the
" burden. - '

I went to the State legislature last year; I"'am back this year,
asking .for more money because we have had an increase in the
arrest rate and, of course, the crime rate. The legislatures say, “We
are sympathetic with you, but look at the Federal budget cuts. We
are ha to assume them and there is no way we ‘can do it and
increase the budget for law enforcement:” -

Before we start expanding Federal jurisdiction, I respectfully
urge that. the resources have got to be there to make that jurisdic-
tion make sense and before expanding the Federal jurisdiction the
Government should have the resources to effectively meet its pres-
ent responsibilities. .

Senator SexctEr. How big is your staff?

Ms. Reno. My staff now consists of about 140 lawyers. 30,000
felony arrests are estimated for this year. ’

Senator SpectER. Do you have your own detective staff for inves-

igative purposes? ‘ _

. RENO. We have 16 investigators, a very small staff that is ba-
sically used for finding witnesses at the last moment in the investi-
gation of sophisticated, complex cases. .

Senator Sr Are process servers handled out of some office
other than yours? . oL . .

Ms. RxNO. Yes, the Metro Dade Police Department, which is the
equivalent of the sheriff's office. =~ .

I have always been impressed with your efforts in the area of ju-
venile justice use I think we would all , 88 you mentioned
earlier, that most career criminals can be identified as such when
they are {'uveniles. And I think again it is an example of where we
wait until it is too late. | .

When Eddie, a fictional character, is 10 he steals a watch at
school; he is sent to the principal; nothing is done. N6 punishment,
no treatment, no diagnosis. When he is 11 he steals hubcaps on the
streets. The pdlce take him home to mother because he i too little
to be taken to the juvenile justice center. And she says he will

" never do it again. No followup.

When he is 12 he steals electric typewriters from a high school.
This time he is suspended for 3 days and that bothers him less be-
cause he likes school less. When g: is 13 he breaks into a store.

By that time, he is a career criminal, a four-time offender. And
he is taken to the juvenile justice center and they have absolutely
no record of the prior offenses because the police did not report. the
little tike that stole the hubcaps and the schools did not report him-
because of the Federal Privacy Act. The juvenile center says
“Young man, this is the first time we have seen you here. We are

- going to put you on probation.”

The next time, he breaks into a home and he is taken to the
state training school in Okeechobee, Fla., which is in the “boon- -
docks” and has no relevance to a kid growing up in an urban area.
He is there for an average of 4 months. Nothing is done to.change
~ ' A :
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"his behavior. There is no punishment. There is-no treatment. And-,
he continues on and on until he becomes the career criminal that .
you will be dealing with in S. 1688. We ought to deal with him up
-front before he becomes the career criminaf _ . - .
My chief assistant just returned from Portland, Oreg. and .San
Jose, Calif. We: have been trying to institute an early intervention
. program that would reach Eddie when he is ten. A teaxz; I hope,
would be formed composed of police operating out of a /eighbor-
y hood service concept, counselors who operate out of the school - -
~ rather than some distant center, and teachers who.together would
be involved in trying to develop a plan that would involve home
visits. I would hope parent counseling would be involved because I
think this is one of the keys. There would be a plan developed to - -
help Eddie get straightened out with a followup to see that Eddie !
- got the benefit of that plan. - : : » . ‘ '
I think it then becomes important that we develop guidelines for /
sentencing and publish guidelines to let kids know that if they get T
into further trouble they face a more cert#in punishment. ..
I would like to address the issue of drugs because we ‘talk‘ahqgv
the impact of drugs on juvenile crime. I think drugs are simply
i, . symptom of the problems kids face growing up, and we give kids ,
i very, very little support. Government has become the parent to  «
' those many who have abdicated. Government has become the weak
support for the single parent family who lives in a public housing
pr(:iject and is trying to raise four kids. Every time she gets a raise
and thinks she can get her kids out of the ‘projects, her food stamp
glt at the end of the

allocation is cut and she cannnot see the lig
tunnel. :

You can see families like this again and again and again. I think
it critical that we address those problems up front and early on in
that childs life. Before that kid is 12 years old and in the seventh
- grade and has a negative self-image and feels depressed and wants

to start taking drugs, I think we can do a lot to stem the drug prob-"
lem by early intervention. -, T -
. In terms of the master plan that you describe, I would ask you to
consider the following. The state should concentrate on juvenile-
crime; on a combination of juvenile counseling and education; on
improving the elementary schools, ré8ucing class size, and improv-
ing-teacher quality; and concentrate on those crimes that are basi-
cally State and local in original and nature. The Federal Govern-
ment should give a long-standing commitment to the prosecution of
crimes involving Federal problems such.as drug smuggling—a tre-
mendous amount of our resources to into trafficking cases, and
trafficking in Miami means from only one place: out of the coun-
try—clearly a Federal problem. : - '
he Federal Government should prosecute the cases involving
aliens of any kind who are here at the_grace of the Federal Govern-
ment, and cases involving career criminals who are basically a Fed-
"% eral problem in terms of their mobile, interstate nature.

Federal grants don’t help that much. We have developed an ex-
cellent juvenile restitution program through our office under a
Federal grant. Yet we could not get the State to take it over when
the Federal moneys ran out because the State was faced with Fed;

eral budget cuts that it was having to absorb.

/
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Federal grants do not help us plan vs;hat we can do over a long, L

perlod of time. We do not know when, where,»and. how thefr are
coming and when, where and how they are leaving. If we could d
. velop the division of labor between State and Federal Government
I described above, it would seem to me to-make sense.

But the largern issue is both a State and Federal commitment to

_crime. The amount spent by Federal, State, and local governments

on law enforcement and courts and prosecutors is tiny compared to
the total magnitude of Government spending. You know better

than most. anybody in this room the tremendous burdens that pros-

" ecutors have accumulated over the last 25 years.
. In.south Florida, the issue is a matter of national securlt.y Our
borders are presently not secure. Anyone can come into south Flor-
ida in a small plane-or small boat. Homestead Air Force Base says
yes, we see them. They are flying low and slow and we know they
are dopers. Well, any y that wants to’ fly low -and slow under
that theory could convey whatever terror and problems and vxo—
- lence that they wanted to, to our shores.

1 think the Federal Government has got to face’ the problem of -

natiorial defense iri terms of, the Caribbean Basin, and both State
"~ and Federal Government have got to face up to the fact that most
Amerlcan people-consider crime the No. 1 problem. Domestic tran-

quility is as important as national defense. If we can send AWACS =

to Saudi Arabia, we ought to be able to send 'an AWAC to the Car-

'1b an, and more importantly, we ought' to make our streets -

ure.
Senator SpECTER. Here, here.

What weuld you suggest that the Federal Government should do .

on those planes that fly low and slow?

Ms. RENo. The amendment to the Posse Comltatus Act is gomg'

to help that. I understand that Homestead Air Force Base will now
be able to use its more sophisticated radar, and that it ou
able to commumcate; to nonmilitary agencies the detectlon of these
planes.

We have had a variety of meetings with the Coast Gua'rd,and

with other agencies. The Coast Guard gives us figures in the mil- .

lions about what it is going to cost to patrol the Caribbean, to in-

* tercept the low and slow planes crossing our borders.

What is wrong with transferring Navy vessels to ‘the Coast
Guard? There are tremendous resources in national defense. I fly
over the naval base at Jacksonville and I see all the military might
there. I then hear from Federal officials in south Florida how their
hands are tied because. of lack of resources. That does not make
any sense to us in south Florida.

enator SPECTER. What would the naval vessels do?

Ms. RENo. Patrol the passage between the Dominican Republic

and Cuba, and Cuba and the Yucatan Channel. I am not the

world’s great naval expert, but those two points have been tradi-

tionally explained to me as being key points‘which with sophisti-
cated radar yo could—-—
Senator SpEcTAR. Dominican Republic and Cuba and where else?

Ms. RENo. An the Yucatan passage between Cuba and the Yu- .

catan Peninsula. With a sophisticated radar and the use of planes
from Homestead, you could monitor those checkpoints. With a so-

e
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phisticated intelligence system operating out of Colombia, - you
could tell who was coming.out and you could intercept them, if you
put your resources there. ,

Senator SPECTER. What is the legal issue, if you know, as to inter-
ception? . - ‘

Ms. Reno. The legal issue has always been that the Navy and

“the“Air Force, as I understand it, with some variation locally, de-
pending on who wanted to get involved, concluded that the Posse
Comitatus Act prohibited them from even getting involved in sur-
veillance or tracking, much less apprehension. I have not seen the
‘measure as it was passed, but I understand it has been amended at
least to permit the military’s tracking facilities and radar facilities
to be used, so that the military can at least say to law enforcement’
agencies, ‘“here he comes.” . ' .

But that is meaningless if he comes here and there is nobody
here to-get him. . . ' : _ e

Senator SPECTER. As to apprehension, would that be legal to.stop,

"stop and frisk perhaps an airplane? .

Ms. Reno. They are stopping and frisking some as they come in
now. If a plane does not file a flight plan, which most of the dopers
do not, if they come into this country from out of the country and
do not report to Customs, clearly the Federal Government has«au-
thority. If it does not, then something is terribly wrong, Senator.

I recently spoke to a group known as the Federal Executive
Board, composed of one representative from each of the Federal
agencies_in south Florida. There were representatives. of the FAA
there. I 'said\that I thought I could fly a small plane to the South-
ern Bahamas, take off, not file a flight plan, not report to Customs,

- and fly over south Miami Avenue and Flagler Street, the main in-
tersection in Miami, and drop a balloon saying “This could have
n an A-bomb” and then land. I could do it five times in 1 week

d nobody, would stop me. |

Senator SPECTER. Are you seriousthat you think an AWAC
might be useful there? . '

Ms. RENo. As I said, an AWAC-type facility. Again, it is mind-
boggling to us that people can come to our shores as easily as they
do without any interception. I do not propose to be a military
‘expert, but I have spokenjto too many Federal and ‘local officials
now that say yes, what are saying makes sense. ,
hSenator SpecTER. Well,’ we shall pursue that. We shall pursue
that.

Back to the juvenfles. I understand from some discussions which
members of my staff have had with you that you have some specif-

“ic ideas as to deteckion and identification of juveniles entering.the -
crime cycle. Would lyou share those with us, please?

Ms. RENo. We have tried to involve the public school system
more and more because part of the problem in State and local gov-
ernment is we fragment ourselves as we try to deal with kids. The
school system passes them on to the juvenile justice system; the ju-
venile justice system passes them on to the criminal justice system.
"'We have monthly meetings now of police, school officials, and
myself at the highest levels to chart the course, and one of our
prime efforts is this early intervention program.

1
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I conceive of it as oriented around a high school feeder pattern,
but with emphasis on the early years, particularly. the elementary
school. When a kid first shows signs of problems, and yesterday I
spoke to 96 elementary school counselors. They confirmed, and
most of them had been counselors for at least 5 years, that they
have watched the progress of some of their kids, and they could tell
in the third and fourth grade when a child was 8 and 9 years old, .
that they were headed for trouble. They could almost mark your _
career criminal at that age.

Senator SpECTER. How could they tell?

Ms. RENo. The kids were acting up in class, not paymg attentxon
losing interest, falling behind. Counselors would try to cut through_
the school bureaucracy to get them intovlearning disabled pro-
grams and be unable to do it. The kid would then just sit in the
back and stare out into space. He would attempt to attract atten-
tion by causing trouble Then he got into petty pilfering and things
like that.

-Senator SPECTER. And they have observed those youngsérs down
the road and see that they have developed into problem cases? )

‘Ms. RENo. Exactly. What should be done there, though, is an im-

mediate effort to involve the.family. Most parents desparately

want to do what is right, and they are just absolutely over-
whelmed, particularly in urban areas, the problems'of how to live.
They want to do what is right by their kids. But they need help

‘and they need support.

Dr. Britain, our school superintendent, has made a commitment

, to try to cut through some of this bureaucracy to really get these
_kids early on into learning disabled programs if that is a factor. ,

One of the features that we have tried to institute because our

- office has pursued housing code enforcement violations vigorously

is if we find substandard housing, or housing that is not up to code
involved with -one of these potential or already existing delin-
quents, we try to direct code authorities in that direction 80 tHat -
Government can make all its best efforts.

The problem of child support is a problem. My office is responsi-
ble for the enforcement of the Uniform Reciprocal Child Support
Act. Again, the Federal effort in this area has been excellent, but
we have got to pursue that in terms of local collection of child sup-
port, to provide some balance in the family. .

As we operate through high school feeder patterns with the ele-
mentary schoels feeding to the junior high and then to the senior

. high, it becomes important that there is continuity. And I would

like to see counselors assigned to a kid that he can know and come
to trust during his whole course through the public school system.

Now he leaves elementary school and he figures he will not have to:
bé bothereéd with old Miss Smith any more and he gets into junior
high school and starts cutting up. Then before you know it he is
into senior high school and there is nobody that can help him and

-provide support throughout.

At the same time,.I think it is absolutely critical that we do not
label kids. I could see -a harsh and ineffective courselor telling a
kid when he was in the fourth grade at 9 years old, kid, you are a
delmquent and we are going to do something about it. If you are

' v
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told you are a delinquent under those firm terms, you might begin
to believe it. .

" So the effort is going to have to be spoken of in terms of support
and assistance, rather thgn punishment initially.

. Senator SPECTER. Well, those ideas are very helpful, Ms. Reno. - |
We very much appreciate your coming here from Florida. It is a
long trip. I know you have already talked to Mr. Mills and Mr.

, Michel, and we would like to take more of your time after the
hearing ends today to talk to you on an informal basis. But what
you -have given us for the record is enormously helpful and we
thank you very much. S
" [The prepared statement of Ms. Reno follows:]

/
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PrRePARED STATBENT of JaneT RBvo
. 7 ¢ o
Thank you for“the opportunity to sppeer todsy. I

support th onqobt end thrust of Senete Bill 16#%. The more

‘forces thet'can be brought to bear on ceresr criminele the

better. Strgot.oﬁd violent crime ie no ldngor 8 locel or.Btoto‘

probles. *ﬁlo ie a wmobile netion. 1Its people sre on the move.
xr-ultL:horo iﬁil. concerns with you, houiv’r.

1. The United Stetes Aétorney in the Southern District
of Plorido_li not ot,t!od to even begin to hendle the o-uggflhq
csees thet I end my five collesguee see in South rlorido. Before
we give him more duties end expend his juriediction, I think we

. . ' .
should make sure thet the office hes sufficient resourcee to do

" the job‘thot it ie preeently euthorized to do.

In eddition, South Floride is plegued by probleme
creeted by en influx 6t‘rotugeoo from the Caribbeen. Moet of
these people ere fine, 1.v-obldin§ people. . A emell portlo? of
these refugees o}o the worst of the crillﬂdA\:i:’ont. Jeilere
dilé:lbo then ee among the most ontl;oociol group of offendere

they heve eeen. There is no doubt thet Ciptro dumped the dregs

/ot his society from his mentel hoepitels end hie prisone in our

midst. Our houpigori; schools, eociel services end lew
o . N
enforcement resources ere streined to the breeking point. Before
edditionsl responsibilities ere eesumed st the Taderel 1eW1, ve
hope the Federel Government will. fulfill ltl\co;iltlont in the
eres of refugee services. N
QFPICE OF STATE ATTORNEZY ) s JANET RENO
. X 3TATE ATTORNEY
INTEROFPICE MEMORANDUM
201.01-22¢ . -
T0: " JANET. RENO ' . DATE: JARUARY 18, 1382
riLe.or N
TROM: CASE NO.:

TOM PETERSEN

SUBJECT  pARLY INTERVENTION
OR CNG.: ,R&;Lm

3 g

The purpose of this memo is to summarixe the reeults
of my trip to Portlend, Oregon, end Sen Joee, Celifornie.
end my vieits to the Karly Intervention Programs which exiet
there buring my visit to the Portlend Program, I wes accompenied
by Peul Bell end Sonny Gross of the Dade County School System.
Mr. Bell end Mr. Gross returned to Miami efter the Portland
visit end did not proceed to n Joee.

.
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I. PORTLAND, ORBGOMN

Qur viait to Ponln‘xd took place on Wednasday and
Thursday, January 13 and 14. During ths viait we were accompariad
the entira time by Ms. Patricias Boffman who is the Director Com
of the Project CARE, which is the acronym for the Portland
Program. Ms. Hoffman holds a Masters Degree in Social Work
and haa directed the Portland Program aince its inception

. five yeara ago. The Portland Program is presently operational

in three junior bigh achools in Portland. It ahould be noted
at thia point that both Ms. Noffman and everyons alae to whom
we apoke felt that & program such as those ‘exiating in Portlangd
and San Jose may be implemented with equal facility in eithar

.s high achool, s junior high achool or an elementary achool.

As indicated, the Portland Program operatea at a junior high

achool level and as will be indicated below, the San Joae .
Program opecatea in a high school, but the concept ia appPlicable

to any achool level, and givan the thrust of our’ Barly Intérvention
diacuassiona to date, our focus will probably at the higher
elementary achool level rathar than tha juniot high achool

level. The Portland Program, as is alao the caae in San Joae,
integfatea two principle concepta which, while operating indapendently
of each other, conatitute Project CARE. Thesas two concepta

are (1) an Interagency Team meeting regularly to diacuss identified
students and (2) a tutoring component which ia made available °

to theae same atudenta. . - N

(1) The Interagency Team meeta in each of the three
junior high achools st least once per month. Ths purpose

‘of the meetinga ia to diacuaa the individual csses which have

been idantifiad by clasaroom teachera. Onca the atudenta’

have bean identifiad as presenting either diacipline or lclrnlni
problema, or & combination of theostwo, the nominatad studenta
aras submitted to & committee of achool teachers and administrators
and, asauming approval of the nominee for Project CARE, the
atudent is then referred to the Project CARE Pacilitator,

one of whbom functiona in each of the three junior high achoola.
(Previously, the three Pacilitators were the only paid employees
of Projact CARE other than Ma. Noffman. They are preaently
being paid for by the three individual junior high achoolas.
Termination of Pederal Punding necaasitated a daciaion by

the school aystem to pick up these positiona, which has baen
done and which ia indicative of the fact that the project

is well thought of “by the achool ayatem). The Pacilitator

. chairs the meeting of the Interagency §roup and prepargs 8

summary of the student's case and problema aftar having ‘made

s home viait and aftar having gathered sll .ralevant information
pertaining to that child. Thias gathering of information ia

greatly facilitated by s Relesse of Information Pora which

haa been developed by Ms. Moffman and which permits s parant

to waive confidentiality of information for all agenciea on

one aingle form. The Inter-Agency Council regularly conaiats

of one repreasentative from the Juvenils Court Probation Department,

& repreaentative, from what is the Portland equivalant of our
Juvenile Court Intake Saction, one representative of tha Portland
Child Welfare Department, which ia the equivalant of our Dada

County Department of Youth and Pamily Development, one reprasentative
of the Portland equivalant of NRS Pamily Social Services,

a achool representative, and repreaentatives of any other
agenciea that might actuslly or potentially be involved {n"
the individual student's case. While th® Pacilitator convenes
and chairs the Intaragency meetings, a decision ia made at

the meating sa to which member of the Interagency group will
be rasponaible for overssaing the handling of thia particular
case. That individuasl ia generally tha agency rapresentstive —
who is slready moat involved with tha case. A discusaion

ia held of what the objectivea are to be in the particular
caae and the case ia then reviewed at aach monthly meeting.
After the meeting, the Pacilitator is raaponaible for preparing
the minutes which apecifically summarize what the objeCtive

is going to be for each child and what is to be' accompl ished
prior to the next meetinge It would appear that thia written
summary is an extremely valuable device, aince it provides
accountability for the actiona to be taken in a particular
caae.
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-the person in Tharge of the overall program. -It ie incumbent . / .
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t
While in Portland, we est in on an Interagency Team o ) .
maeting, end ell three of us were imprecsed with the concept.
Ons obesrvetion thet sach of ue mads was that such a concept
depends to a grest extmnt upon the leadership abilities of .

upon this person to aseurs. that the Interagency semtinge are

held regularly and that all of the eppropriate agency repressntatives
#re present. It {g intereseting to note that Me. Noffman had

had surgery and had not been evailable to the program since

laet Octobc;. As & result, in one of thres junior high echools

"o meeting had been held during thet period. Thm ‘Pecilitator’ ,

im that high achool wae apologetic and explained hie failure

to convene & mesting by pointing to the other reeponsibilities .
which he had in the school,7eince he no longer worked exclusively

for Project CARE.

(2) The tutoring component is made available to
Project CARE participants once they have been identified ond
referred to the Interagency Council. Over the fivam yeare o
that the program hes been in operatien. The tutoring has
been ,‘:tori-d in eeverel ways, the principal onse being peer .
tutoring in which other, ueually older, atudsnte perform tutoring
for younger children with the incentive to the older etudsnt
being that they receive echool credit for performing the tutoring
for & epecified number of hours per week. Ths other method /
in which tutoring ie presently taking place in Portland ie
by means of a senior citizens group which comes into the school
for a specified number of hours per day. Mr. Bell and Mr. Gross
fesl thet present methode of providing tutoring in Dade County, 3
such as by meens of using volunteers am ie Bing presentl
done with apparent success,in the Corsl Gables Eigh School,
could readily be ue in e Barly Intervention Program which
ie to be put in place here. Incidentally, Nr. Bell and Nr. Groes
both felt that many of the componente in the Portland Program
sither elready exiet in some form or.could eaeily be crested
in our school system so that the implementation of ths Portland
Program here could teks place quite rapidly end qut;. saeily.
There wes some diecuseion Dy Mr. Gross and Mr. pellof hiring
Ns. Noffman, who indiceted e willingnese to relocete in Plorida
where she had lived befors moving to Portlend. N : {

II. SAM JogR, CALIPORNIA

) After lseving Portlend, Mr. Bell end Mr. Gross returned
to Miami end I proceedsd to San Joes, Celifornis, whers I
visitad the Yerbs Busne Migh School on Pridey, Jenuary 15
with Mr. Jerry Mulline, who ie the heed counselor in thet
high school. The high echool hss four thousend studsnts end
Mr. Mulline supervises sight other school counselors.

The Yerbs lu.nu‘!:ogr.. begen spproximetely ssven
years ago and wes spperently dependent upon federel funding

which no longer existe. The Yerbe Buens concept is considerably
more ambitious then the Portlend concept in thet Nr. Mulline'
intention wee not merely to identify end service individusl
students, but rather to implement a new method, end philoesophy

of social sérvice delivery to neighborhoode and their residents.
In ite eimplest form, the concept would sesk to replece centralized
sociel service delivery with a decentrelized system based

{n neighborhood high echocls. In ite idesl form, repreesntstivas
Of the verious social ssrvice delivery egenciss would be present
iy the school on s requler basie, ideslly five deys e week,

and when ths Yerba Buens Program wes fully operstionsl this
presence of agency representstives in the school wes coupled

with a 24-hour hot line which permitted e neighborhood reeident
experisncing & problem to cell ths hot linse. One of ths sgency
representetives who wee on duty thet perticuler night would

then respond to the cell in much ths same wey thet our Assistsnts
respond to homicide cells et night. This concept is obviouely
more ambitious than the Portlend Progrem since it requires,

in contrast to a monthly mesting by agency respressntstives

in the schooi. 2 constent presence of thoss representstives

in the echool. Mr. Mulline wee abls to schieve this when

federel funding finenced the sxtrs positions thet whers cresated
for thet purpose. They heve not been eble to raceive the
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coopearation of tha sganciss for thia purpoae /since lung*pq
ended. )
. . >
It ia my faeling thet tha laval of commitment at
thia Point in time in Miami ia such that we are in a poaition
to receive mora of a commitment from tha coopereting agancisa
then pteaently ia needed in Portland, elthough probably leea
of a commitment than anvisioned by Mr. Mulline in the idaal
torm of his progtam. It might, for axample, be posaible for
us to initielly elicit a commitment from the aganciea to have
a rapresentative in the achool ona day per weak. Tha Ptaaenca
of the lztncy rapresentative on that day would be advertised
within the school to both teachera and atudenta: as wvell as
in the naighborhood, and thia might be attemptad on a ttial
basis for & patticular langth of time. Thia would also permit
—tiye“Interagancy Weetings to be initially held on e waekly
ot bi-weekly baaia sinca tha reptasantetivea would be praeant
in the achool anyway. .

. As in Portland, the sacond componeft of the ptogram
involved tutoring of participating atudanta. In San Joaas,
however, the tutoring ia dona by tha Yarba Buana Bigh $chool
students and is sade availabla to alamentary and junior high
school. students in tha Yarbd Buena faader pattarn who are
bused from their own achool to tha high echool whara thay
racaiva tutoring Yot a apecifiad number of houra gar wask.

It ia obvioua thet in thia model tha pProgram part cipanta .
ars not tha axclueiva racipienta of tha tutoring and in that
ssnse tha tutoring. ie ssperata from tha program. Thia ia
indicative of the obvioua Point that Mr. Mullina' Yarba Buena
concept was reelly not an Batly Intarvention Program in tha
senas thet ita obgectlvo was navar, to identity individual
atudanta and to Craate an Interagancy earvica Taam and dalivary
and tutoring ayatesm for thoae atudanta, but rathar to davalop !
a school based social servica dalivary ayetam for all the
etudenta in a particular achool as wall aa thairc tamiliaa '
end rasidanta of tha naighborhood that hava no atudents in

111. CONMCLUSION

I wea imprassed with both Portiend and San Joae,
and particularly with the fact thet tha two ConCepta mey be . /
combined and that there appeara to be a gteat deal of flexibility
in both concepta with respect to how the Intaragency Teams
worked end what ita objectivea ara. ss well ea how tha tutoring
component functiona. Depending on the amount of cosmitment
we cen obtain from tha varioua sgenciss and whet ia alrasady
availeble in our achool ayatem, it would sppear that we can
capidly devalop an Early Intervantion Program basad on these

* two mQdels.

What ia particularly gratifying ia that Mc. Groaa
and Mr. Bell wera fuita impresaed with Portland and ara willing
to procasd immediataly to implementing & program. Dua to ¢
tha fact that I will be in Grand Jury..all dey today and due
to tha fact that Mr. Grosa will be at a School Board mesting
all day tomorrow, it ia not posaibla for ua to meat thia weak - .
since I will be out-of-town until Monday. wWa heve get e Beating
for lata Tuaaday aftarnoon at which time we will begin to -/
discuss specific implamentation of our own program. Mr. Grosa
#tatad that it is hia infention to hava tha program operational
by latae Fabruary. -

. Once Mr, Grosa and I have met, 1 will convena a
meating of the raprasantativea of the varioua heada of tha
principal agenciaa which would be expectad to participata
in thia program. Thia meeting would obvioualy include Max
Rothman: Jim Mooney of Dada County Youth and Family Devalopment,
Mr. Groas and myself, and & rapresentative of the Metro-Dade
Polica Department and tha City of Miami Polica Departmant,

I would propoas to hold that meeting the firat wask in Fabruary.

Mc. Groaa and I alao Plan to brief Dr, Britain’a
Interagancy Committas at tha naxt Thuradey maeting which ia
to be hald the sacond week in February, and at that time hopa
to show a film of the Portland Program which.ia being providad
to ua.

Ric _' 2
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¢ Senator SpkcTER. I would ndw like to call’ Mr. Jack Durrell,
Deputy Director of the Natonal Institute on Drug Abuse, and Mr.
Thomas Paukin, Director of ACTION, and Ms. Connie Horner,
Deputy Assistant Director of Policy and Planning for ACTION.

We very much appreciate your joining us today. Mr. Durrell is
presently the Acting Director of the National Institute on Drug
Abuse. Mr. Paukin is the Director of ACTION and is actively in-
volved with drug programs there, as is Ms. Connie Horner who is
the Deputy Assistant Director of Policy and Planning for ACTION.

Mr. Durrell, may I call on you first to give us your thinking on .
what is-the best way to deal with the drug problem with juveniles?

STATEMENT OF JACK DURELL DEPUTY DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
INSTITUTE ON DRUG ABUSE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES

Dr. DureLL. Thank you, Senator.

If I may, I would like to take this opportunity to summarize
some of the information we have about the prevention of drug
abuse by juveniles, and not read my formal testlmony but just sum-
marize some of the highlights. /

Senator SpecTER. We would appreciate that. That is our practice
and your formal testimony will be nfade a part of the record.

Dr. DureLL. Thank you. B ¥

The points I wish to make are really few and rather straxghtfor-
ward. First of all, I would like to indicate that the primary man--

o

date of the Natxonal Institute on Drug Abuse is to-be concernéd ~ °.-

with drug abuse as a pubhc health problem. And indeed, our’ level
of concern about that is enormous, and particularly as drug abuse
affects the juvenile population.

The trends toward increased use of licit and illicit drugs in a
nonmedical way by youth have been markedly up over the past two
decades, perhaps peaking in 1978, where indeed one could be con-
cerned, that perhaps 10 percent of our youthful population were
using drugs at a level that posed a real senous danger to their
health and development. .

I say there was a peak in 1978 because there is early evidence
that this trend has begun to reverse; 1979, 1980 and in soon to be
released figures, in 1981, there h been a dramatic change in what

* was formerly a relentless upward progression. There i8 beginning

evidence of a decrease in drugs.

We believe that is in part due to the early successes of preven-
tion programs. We believe, in fact, though preventiqgn and drug
abuse prevention is a relatively new area and has not been studied
and developed to the point where it has the reliability of certain
approaches in drug abuse treatment, there is nevertheless evidence .
that prevention programs work.

Senator SpecTER. What kind of preventxon programs specxﬁcally,
Dr. Durell?

Dr. DureLL. The prevention programs that work are not like a
vaccination in which you simply take a child aside and can do
something with the chid that will prevent hlm from engaging in

. drug abuse. The programs that work——

1)2 p
pe .
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" Senator Sn:cﬁ:n. Has there been any effort made to find a vac-
cine? 4 . . '
Dr. DureLL. Well, we are working ox it.

Senator SPECTER. Are you really? ’

Dr. DureLL. Yes. There are serious concerns with understandin(f

- the basic underlying physiology of psychotropic drugs, understa

ing the receptors that they work with. Efforts are being made to
understand whether there are certain receptor deficiencies in cer-
tain people which make them more prone to get into the use of
psychotropic substances.
f such metabolic deficiencies could be found, they could perhaps
be corredted. _ -
Senator SPECTER. Well in your experience, you find someone who"

*"js taking drugs. What is the earliest age you know about where a

by

child is taking dru%s? .

Dr. DUReLL. Well, certainly it is a problem that begins to achieve
significance at perhaps 10, 11, 12 years of age.

Senator SPECTER. What is the earliest that you know of?

Dr. DureLL. I have heard of cases at 8 or 9 years.

Senator SPECTER. You have read about some at 8? ) _

Mr. DureLL. Right. But we certainly know from the data that
many children who are into heavy drugs by the age of 16 or 17
have started as early as 10 or 11. :

Senator SPECTER. What is the best step that you can suggest to

~ take to help a youngster who is smoking pot at 8or9?

! v
" Dr. DURELL. You are raising a difficult question. I think the first
step that a parent can take is indeed to begin to talk with a young-
ster about what is going on. Then if it is something that does not
respond and the child is heavily involved at that age, clearly pro-
fessional advice i$ necessary.

Senator $PECTER. And what professional advice would you look
for? Psychiatric care? Psychological counseling or what?

Dr. DureLL. I would not immediately go for psychiatric care. I
wc;luld] bring it up with the family physician. I would deal with the
school. ' A

Senator SpEcTER. What would the school be expected to do?

Dr. DureLL. I would like to make one point about primary pre-
vention. When we talk about prevention, we are generally talking
about institutng programs that take effect before the child is using
drugs. We are talking about instituting programs which make
drugs less attractive to children, which take the glamor out of
taking drugs, which try to uncover the subtle sociopsychological
forces. that lead children to start taking drugs. .

Senator SPECTER. You are talking about educational programs?

Dr. DUReLL. We are talking about educational programs and——

Senator SPECTER. At what stage do you start those?

Dr. DuReLL. There is evidence that there is no age too early, and -
there are educational programs that start as soon as first grade.

Senator SpecTER. First grade. And does your national institute
have-such programs which you send to schools to recommend that
they use? »

Dr. DUreLL. No, we have not identified any single program as ef-

fective. There are a number of programs that have been developed

by various institutions and educators throughout the country, and

23
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/

- we recommend programs to schools depending upon their own in-
terest and willingness to use——

Senator SPECTER. Is there any systematic effort at the present
time, to your knowledge, to make available to all first grades every-
where some specific educational program? .

. DureLL, No. That depends entirely on local Junsdlctlons as to
what they——

Senator SPECTER. Well what they do is up to them, but is there
any effort that you know of, federally or otherwme which says
here is a program in 15 pages that you could put into effect? .

Dr. DursLL. Yes, there are a numbeg of such programs. Thyrei S

are Federal programs coming out of the Communicable Disease
Center of the Public Health Service. There are private programs
coming out of foundations like Know Your Body.

Senator ‘Spxcter. But is there any effort made to make these
known to all the boards of education on a nationwide basis, saying
here is .a program, it would be advisable to make this information
available to your first graders?

Dr. DureLL. The Department of Education has developed certain
programs, attempting to get through to schools of the country. Our
particular approach has been working with State governments, and
we have established a State prevention coordinator in each State of
the Union, one of whose responsibilities is to interact with educa-
tional authorities around what they might do to institite programs
ini schools.

Senator SPECTER. What percentage of the NIDA budget is now al-*
located for drug abuse prevention among youth?

Dr. DureLL. The budget is in transition, so that it is difficult to
answer this question in terms of the here and now. °

Senator Specter. How about the budget that is not in transition,
fiscal 19817

Dr. DuRreLL. Fiscal year 1981, the resources fer prevention were
approximately $16 million, which represented about 6 percent of
the overall.

Senator SPECTER. And what does 1982 look like?

"Dr. DURELL. 1982 budget is primarily a research budget, and spe-
cific allocation of resources to prevention haye been moved imo the
block grant, so that in the block grant about 20 percent of the
funds are designated for drug abuse prevention.

Senator SpEcTER. But that is up to the block grantee as to what
is done?

Dr. DurgLL. Exactly.

" [The prepared statement of Mr. Durell follows:] *




PREPARED STATB’ENT oF JACK Durert
Mr. Chairmsn, l am pleased to be here today and welcane the opportunity to
discuss the problun of drug abuse among our country's youth. We all share
the important r;:sponsibility of doing what we can to prevent the tragedies that

accompany drug abuse. . .

* The current Administration recognizes drug abuse as one of the Nation's ongoing
mfjog health and socill'probluns. For this reason, there exists in the White
House a special focal point for drug abuse matters. As you know, np other
categorical health or social problem is so represented at th’s level. fhe need
for such representation arises out of the fact .that drug abuse differs fram most

_ " other problems in several significant respects. Ome is the rapidity of changes s

v in drug abuse patterps in the last two decades; before 1960 only 1 or 2% of Wh
might ever have tr{ed an illicit drug. Now about two-thirds of our youth have
tried an illicit drug at same time before graduating from high school. Secondly,

an illicit, profit-making network exists in this country and worldwide, which

actively spreads and tends to maintain the drug abuse problem. The National
Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA), which I represent today, plays a key role :n
ful‘fining the goals of the Federal Govermment's drug abuse prevention: strategy.
Our principal aim is to bring about a reductisn in the. use and abuse of drugs

and in their health and econamic costs.

Mr. Chairman, before I share with you some of what we have learned about drug

abuse prevention, I would 1ike to discuss the scope of the drug abuse problem

among young people in our country today. NIDA has two principal sources of

mfomauon about the mcxdcnce and prevalence of drug use.by yog\g people.
These are our annual Naumal Survey of High School Seniors and our biennial
National Household Survey an Drug Abuse, The National Survey of, High School '
Seniors, conducted by the University of Michign.n's Institute for Social Research,
has studied a large sample of high school seniors each year since 1975. " In

1981, over 16,000 seniors in 107 public and 20 private high schools throughout
the country participated in the research.. The rother NIDA- funded study is the
National Household Survey on Drug Abuse conducted by the George Washington

University. This biennial assessment has been funded since 1971. The 1979
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results are based on 7,224 face-to-face interviews, including 2,165 youth, 12
to 17"'yurs old. These national data bases are extremely useful
. because of ti:xeir'contimity. consistency with other local s\&veys,.plld the trends . .~
they reveal. Moreover, they probably yield conservative estimates of_incxdenc: S
and prevalence of drug use and sbuse because they do not survey the su}:powluion .
of youth that probably have the-highest levels of drug use--those who have left .
home and school. '
.. - 4 .\ , - ({"
Among the most important findings about youth bused on the 1979 and 1980 Hi;h o .
School Senior survey lnd the -1979 Phtioml ibmehold Dmg Abuse &xrvey sre theser .

e About two out of every three' seniors (65 percenit) report illicit
drug use at some time in their lives.

About four in every ten seniors (39 percent) report using an
illicit drug other than marijuans at some time.

m‘i‘ju-m is by far the most widely used illicit drug agong high
. - %
Tn school senjors, with 60 percent reporting some. use in their life- .

time, 49 percent reporting same use._in the past year, and 34 percent
R uportin;u:emthcputmth »

e Over seven million ym.ng people bomexthc ages of 12 and 17 : ﬂ
~
say they. hnve tried marijuana at least once. This figure rep-

resents 31 percent of this sge growp.

o Of particular concern {s the fact that 31 percent of high school

seniors report that their initial experiences with marijuana
occurred prior to high school pPimarily in the 7th, 8th and 9th

grades, presumably between the ages of 12”and 14,

Among 1980 M’h school seniors, the most widély used clns‘s of
illicit drugs, other than marijuans, was sthuhnts Next came
- 1¢uunts oocune and hallucinogens. These were followed by
sedatives and tranquilizers.

}
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s M Onlr-n, these .sutlstics are of pe.at concern to us They pm.'tny a serious
pmblu--cxtensxve drug use by teemgers--n proble- which dxd not exist in-this
“coutry three decades ago. In the view of our most cxperimced rese‘rchers, B
mwh.vethem;hestlevelofdm;usemgyotm;peopleofmydevelopedcmmtry ‘
in the world. We are concerned because our- mst recent estmtes of the umml
mtiml cost of drug nhuse are very high- -by some esth-tes, close to,:r above
$100 billiom. K ’
. L ‘ \
Given thu nlannn; level o6f use and this énormous cost ysocxety, 1 am plused

- to szy thn our prenmmry figures from the 1981 ngh Scl)ool Senior Voo
Survey show for the third consecutive year a sipuficant dmp in- .rijumn use. v
msdropappurstobcplrtofmomdl decmseind}uguse t.hou;hthereis

Mdcuofsmmcmseinthemgeofsmnlotherdmgs

" It should be noted thn daily alcohol Mse remains level for high school

seniors, but that in 1980, 41 percent of t}us group reported that on at least
one occasion dx_nng the prior two-week interval they had five or more drmk_j

Cinarow. T -

- : ' S Y o
Although we fmd the data about a.decrease in marijuana use to be encouragmg,
we have & long way to go in prevennng widespread drug use among our youth.

Even whgn we describe positive trends in this field, we must keep two pomts
in 'n'\indi-thev historiczl tendency for many drug u;e patterns to move up and

dcmn, mpredxctably, and, that even with current mprovement, our drug use )
4 " N .- ) \

levgls cpntyme to be extremely high.

3\ ’

APPROACHES TO DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION,

MrOlumn.Iuouldliketosh;rewlthywmofwhathasbeenleamednbwtv-~' '
drug abuse pre'ventxon and what we at the Institute have developed over the last : ‘
few years lbst important, we have concluded that ~g1ven the right combination
" of essential variables, prevention efforts do make a dlfference Nhen concerned
parents, schools, “courts . church leaders, State and local off:culs, and even
businessmen, come togéther in a joint effo;t, the chances of a drug abuse pre-

. mdon effort being succ;;ssful are very good. There is good reason to believe

1
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J
that the recent daann'l trond in high school seniors’ urijmm use xs related
to dm. sbuse prevention efforts.

. - o
Mr. Chairsan, with your perlission 1 would like to describe briefly what NIDA
hsdwalopedint.heuyofadxmahneprwmtimsmtegy / Just & we have

besn cuum.d with establishing a .national treatment and rehabilitation mnm'k

Cto treat drug abuse and drug addictim, we also have been actively developing

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

a prevention program. Through our prevennm gnnts, we have established

State Prevention Q:ordmltors (SPCs) in all the States and Terntories who

are prcvention experts and who are responsible for developing and coordinating
‘the esublisl'nent of State-wide drug abuse prevention programs. Sute Prevention
Coordinators serve as advocates at the State level for prevention progrmmg,
and thoy serve as excellcnt channels of coummicanon between the Federal .
gverment and the Sutes. The presence of such coordxmtors assures us that
the latest in preventxon evaluation research firidings can be incorporated into

each State's plamning proces's. The SPCs also are resident experts for private

‘citizens and ﬁannts who are interested in establishing or improving a drug

abuse preventjon program. We have found that the 1eadersh1p of a prevention
professxoml is useful as conuumues begin to orgamz.e their own preventxon

efforts. Frequently, commmity groups have all the motivation and dedxcation

‘l!ll are determined to do all they can to keep their kids away from drugs, but

they need help in getting started; and/or they need to have accurate and sensitive’
materisls that they can use when talking amongst themselves and with‘yotm people.

- The State Prevention Coordinator plays an important e in assisting locql pre-

vention programs, schools, and concerned parents combat dgxg abuse.

Anothor function of "the Sute Prevention Grant Program has been to provide funds

to be tenyed to commmities® Sto “support local arug ablse® ‘prevention programs. "
Just as we awarded funds to the States to establish trestment cemters, we hnve‘

begun to provide sone of the funds necessary for drug sbuse prevention programs.

The funds for these sctivities are now included inthe Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and
Mental Health (AIM) block grant, and the lsw requires that 208 of the alcohol and drug
funds support prevention activities. Of particular nqteA is that a portion

of these fimds were used to provide séed money to develop Channel (ne projects.
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1 will describe Channel One in more detail in a few moments; let me just say
that the tremendous success of this program has been’ because of the vital
collaboration among local youth and adults, government agencies, and private
industry. It is important to keep emphasizing the i.l'pornnce t;f col-laﬁoraticn .
and éoopention. They are the key elements in any, drug abuse prevention success

story.

A msjor component of our drug abuse prevention program at NIDA is- knowledge
development. Through a series of grants and éontncts, we have been able to

) encoﬁrage the development of a number of important new téchniques to help

prevent drug abuse and have been able to support a number of evaluation studies
to determine just which technique pw to be more effective. Over the last
several years, drug abuse prevention evaluation methodology has grown to be
co;plex snd sophisticated. ] )

/ /

1 would l.ike to take this opportunity to describe one of the more promising

. drug '/abupe prevention strategies under development. It is based on information

that has been gathered from the study of successful programs to delay the onset
of cigarette smoking by jumior high students. &Jldn; is considered to be a
pmtotypxc addiction, and the last few years have seen some real success in
lowering the mc1dence and prevalence of smoking n-mg adolescents The reasons
for this success appear to be related to the combination of providing, in a
school setting, educational smaterials on the effects of smoking and nicotine

on the smn body, and the identification of the subtle motivations that lesd

youngsters to the use of psychoactive substances. Programs are then designed
to provide a counterforce to those motivational processes. Early evidence

shows that even in programs that are exclusively focused on prevention smoking,

_there is a positive effect on preventing the initiation of drinking and marijuana

. smkmg This finding is probably related 'to the "'gateway hypothesis’ which

1nd1cates that youngsters tend to start drug use with beer and wine, progress
to cigarettes, and then graduate to hard alcohol and marijuana. We believe
‘that if this progression can be interrupted at an early stage, that illicit
drug use can be delayed, if not prevented in a large proportion of yomgstu57

Although we are strongly committed to the goal of preventmg illicit drug use/




4
any delay is also advantageous, both to society and to the individual. There is
good reason to believe that the younger the child when he starts illicit dryg

use, the more likely he is to become a heavy user and the more likely. he is to

‘develop seriols negative consequences.

/
Mr. Chairman, let me continue to discuss the NIDA drug abuse prevention ‘prognin

by briefly describing our technical assistance and technology transfer efforts._

‘There is no doubt that for drug abuse prevention programs to be effective, the

- citizens of local commmities must be interested in and dedicated to an anti-

ERIC
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drug environment; they also must be willing to create prevention programs for -
young people. Through our technical assistance efforts, we try to emphasize

the need to'co{?le credible drug information with-prevention activities. '
We-& ‘this by bringing experimcéd experts to local commmities to consult

with them about their drug lbus‘q prevention efforts. We learned that just
providing youngsters with information alone is not enough, particularly if

that information is not credible. At least two novanen'ts today are successfully /
combining education materials with prevention activities. Ger.ninly, the Parents'
Movement must bk applauded for its vigor and dedication to the eradication of
drug use among young preoplé. The Channel Oné programs that have develqped all
over the country are another example of a successful mobilization of the ﬁriwte

sector into a partnership with government.

With your pemission, Mr. hairman, I 'woulé like to say a few words about these
two approaches and how we at the Federal level have tried to support them. The
Parents' Movement c’onsists of over 1,000 groups of parents who have the gogl of
prevénting and eliminating drug use among young people. These are peer grouﬁs
that have organi'zed themselves without any govermment support, and they are
having a strong influence on drug use among our mtibr;'s youth, Perhaps the

most concrete example of our efforts to facilitate the growth of the Parents'

Movement is our publication of Parents, Peers, and Pot, a book written by a
parent who successfully organized the small commmity of her children’s'frieqd.s'

parents to help their children'get away from drugs. Parents, Peers, and Pot

tells the story of what these parents did when they realized that drug abuse

was affecting their children's normal development. It also contains numerous

o
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f:cts about marijusns 'and its health consequences.: Quite frankly, we' t.hi.nk of | '
this publicatmn as our best seller. We camot keep it in stock we get weekly V
requests for thousands of copies. The efforts these parents mnde have become
the guxde for rundreds of thousands of parents thmugh)ut the country concerned

about drug usage by their children. | '

The Institute has sponsored national and regional meetings that include cmce'm;d
pnr'nts Our role is not to direct the programs and appmches that ‘are being
developed, but to lend technicxl guidnnce whenever possible. It is our experience

‘that a firm and knowledgeable parem can do a great deal to prevent drug abuse.

1'hose meetings bring together parents to share their experience and give them

the opportunity to learn more about drug abuse andv its prevention.

'Ihe Channel One program is another example of a project th.nt“we have assisted
through seed money and through our technical lsslstance efforts -Channel One
pmvxdes a systemanc approach ‘0 the development of an effecuve "alternative”
progran, 1_ é., a program \\'hose acuvules help )oung people fmd neamngful roles
and experiences in life such that drug abuse becomes unattractice to them and
incdmpofible with their own strivings, growth, and accomplishment. What is so

unusual and exciting about the program is that it is a successful replication,

on a nation-wide basis, of a drug abuse preventxon model that involves a variety -

of community members and resources. Through Channel One, young people become

involved in,meaningful commmity activities in which an anti-drug climate is
strongly maintained. NIDA has provided substantial funds for the effort and

collaborated actively with State authorities, the Prudential Insurance Company ,

' Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, other businesses, and many vdedicated pre-

vention professionals in supporting the ‘development of Channel One sites. Cur-
rently‘, there are over 150 sites in 46 States and Territories with the sponsor-
ship of over 80 private sector organizations, mostly business enterprises. The
involvement of & business leader to help enable the planning group to effectily
tap the resource pool of the conmmity'has been one of the key elements in the
progx'"am‘s success. Increasing public awarenss of drug abuse and ‘its negotive
consequences is another major component of our drug abuse prevention program. >
Qur activities in this areo are based on the premise that one of the most effective
provcntion strategies is to increase the public's awareness of the problem.

People have to know that they have a problem in their commmity or in their

/
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schools before they can organize to do something about it. Even when individdus
do decide t.hey want t0 do suth.i.ng about drug abuse prevention, they need to
know where th'y can tum for hc!). For the last several years, the -Institute
has been involved in producing materials that provide a factual and credible
discussion about the health consequences of drugs. Amr_n;terinl is targeted

‘both to adults and to children and teenagers. Much of what we have published

is for use by parents and teachers.

Along with the production of drug abuse information, the Institute is active

in stimilating the public media to promote drug abuse prevention. An enmple S
that you my be familiar with is the Drug Fair Drug Abuse Public Awareness
Campaign that was u‘rgeted at both parents and young people. Drug Fair executives
believed that drugstores have a wunique respons'ibilﬂity .to educate the public

about the proper use ‘of drugs, because drugs are their b\'miness, and the.phnm-
acist is the drug expert among health care professionals. Under the technical
guidance and imprimatur of NIDA, Drug Fair sponsored the development of media
‘materials for dist,ributic;n'.in their drug stores, a TV special to introduce the
program ‘and a number ofradio spots, as well as conducting a mumber of cutreach
efforts in the commmnity.

- ;
In a similar vein, NIDA and the National Headquarters pf Blue &oss/!lﬁe Shield
are working together to critique and enhance a drug abuse education program
develgped by a locﬁ Blue Cross affiliate in Cleveland, Chio. Blue Cross plans
to print over a million copies of a drug abuse booklet and to develop a video-
tape that can be /used nationally. The goal of the project is .for Blue Cross
Plans acorss the comtry‘to adopt this information and integrate it into their
local programs. NIDA is providing the technical guidance needed and will help
narket the progrm by contacting major parent groups, State and -Federal agencies
that II)’ be Mterested in the prognm s development.

As an example of our trying to increase public awareness, the Department of
Health-and Human Services, through NIDA, is plamning to implement a marijusna
public information campaign designed to 1{lf1uence attitudes towards marijuana

use. It will attempt to deglamorize marijuana use and encourage nondrug-

e
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taking behavic;r As part of the r\auonai Dmg Abuse Information Program, several
national orgam.auom and agencu:s will be involved in e\'pandmg the Institute's
information dissemination efforts. These organizations/agencies.will serve as .
intermediaries between NlDA'and Tegiona'l-and local organizations: :
In addition, NIDA will continue its ‘efforts to ensure that research findings '

/
N . P
are disseminated. Findings derived from grants and contracts will be dissemi-

nated directly to practitioners, program administrators, and the scientific
" N
commmity through a variety of mechanisms.

4

m". Chairman, ! have tried today to p'roxide an overview of the drug abuse prevention

- program that we have developed at the bhti?ml Institute on Drug Abuse; I also

have gtiempted to -describe some of what we have learned about successful dmg

abuse prevention efforts. /I pensonaylly find this effort to be both challenging )
and rewarding and I.hope that mcreasmgly more people will come forth with an .
nterest'in preventing drug use among our young people. Even with the downward

trend we are beginning to achieve, rmc?l \remai.ns to be done. We are .strongly

committed to helping pnrents. commmnity organizations, churches, Sute‘md

local governments, schools, and the prwate sector Gome together in a coopentive

effort to prevent drug abuse among our youth, and reverse the ‘trend townris

an edsy chemical fix of life's problems. !

— ‘mu\k you very much, Mr. Chairman, I would be glad to mwex: any ques,tiom

you may have.

Q i
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Senator SPECTER. Let us shift to yo{x, Mr. Pauken, if we may. We
would be very interested to know what activities ACTION is under-
taking on this subject. '

STATEMENT OF THOMAS W. PAUKEN, DIRECTOR, ACTION, AC-
COMPANIED BY CONNIE HORNER, DEPUTY ASSISTANT DIREC-
TOR OF POLICY AND PLANNING, ACTION

Mr. Pauken. Thank you, Senator. As was mentioned previously,
I also have a written statement which is being submitted for the
record, and I will not repgat the full testimony contained therein.
Senator SpecTEr. Fine. We shall make it a part of the record in

Mr. Pauken. | was intrigued by both your questions and of -.
course your background as district attorney in Philadelphia, and I -
am sure the experiences you’'had in seeing young geople coming
through the criminal justice system, who in so many. instances
were involved in drug-related offenses or: offenses with some con-
nection to drugs. ' : '

I want to give.you my background of interest individually which
led me to encourage our agency to get involved in this area. Quite

- frankly ACTION, the Federal agency for voluntarism, has done

nothing in the past in the area of drug abuse, has ignored this area
in terms of encouraging voluntarism in such a significant and im-
portant problem area. ‘ B

I also am an attorney and in my position as a private attorney in
Dallas, I began to see a number of years ago a lot of young people
come into my office, who had gotten themselves in trouble with the
criminal justice system. Repeatedly I began to see a pattern of.
backgrounds which indicated problems of family difficulties, prob--
lems of illiteracy or droping out, and problems of dr/ug-related be-
havior.

I guess the thing that finally got my attention in a rather dra-
matic fashion was representing a young man who had been
charged with possession of marihuana, a misdemeanor in the State
of Texas, and we had worked it nut so that he and his parents were
very amenable with the outcome in the criminal justice system.

Afterward I indicated to him that everything had been worked
out but that, of course, he really needed to avoid use of illegal
drugs in the future, including marihuana. The young man became -
very upset and almost broke down into tears. I could not quite un-
derstand why he was upset, given the fact that things had worked
out to his satisfaction, and I pursued it by asking him: “What are
you upset about? What is wrong?’ He said: “Well, if I cannot
smoke marihuana, I will not have any friends.” v ’

I think this issue of peer group pressure is so dramatigally differ-
ent from the experience of my generation of the high school age of
the late 1950’s, of the college age of the early 1960's, when the peer
group, if anything, frowned upon drug use. We had, beginning in
the late 1960’s and continuing on through the 1970’s, as was men-
tioned, perhape at its peak in 1978, a real push, if you will, an en-
couragement of young people to get involved into the drug culture,
principally with marihuana as the entry level drug.

r
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I think our agency, dealing with voluntarism and supports volun-
teer efforts, can he{p on the prevention side. I think once you get
_into the treatment side, you are dealing with experts. We can offer
i a minimum amount of help. But I think in the area of drug preven-
/ tion and drug education, volunteers have an enormous amount to
contribute. ‘ , .
Senator-Specter. How do you deal ‘with that problem of peer
pressure? =7 / :
Mr. Pauken. Well, I think it is a combination of things. We are
testing out seme ideas. I think it requires involvement of parents
, -groups. I do not think a one-on-one parent situation is sufficient. I
think parents have got to come together. I think they are willing to
volunteer when they see a problem. Getting them to recognize that
they have a problem is half the battle. - ’

Members of the National Federation of Parents for Drug-Free
Youth, with no government funds from the Federal, State, or local
level, have done a remarkable job of organizing parents as volun-
teers throughout the country. We are going to try to help their
effort in terms of providing technical assistance to other parents.

Senator SpecTer. What kind of technical assistance, Mr. Pauken?

Mr. Pauken. Well, the technical assistance is in terms of how to
organize, in terms of providing materials, and up-to-date, s¢ientific
information on marihuana. The scientific information has changed.

Senator SPECTER. Are there such materials available?

Mr. Pauken. Yes, there are. The American Council on Marihua-
na, headed by Dr. Du Pont, is preparing such materials right now.
Those materials will be made available. We have provided a mini-

mal grant. Those materials will be made available to parents
groups throughout the United States. Sl

Senator SpecTEr. How broadl distribqu are your volunteers in

ACTION? Do you cover all the States?
Mr. PAukeN. We are just starting. We\have two programs, two
. demonstration programs that are underway. The parents move-
-ment is spread throughout the country. That technical assistance
“will be able to be provided to parents wherever they are interested
in coming together. .
Senator SpecteR. How much funding or how much staff do you °
have to proliferate that kind of programing?
Mr. Pauken. Constance Horner has worked more directly in this
area. .
Senator SPEcTer. Welcome, Ms. Horner., Thank you for coming.
Ms. Horner. Thank you, Senator. We are not providing this in-
formation directly through ACTION staff at headquarters here in
Washington. What.we are doing, in part, is to award a grant jointly
to an organization at Georgia State University and another organi-
zation which is situated both in Maryland and in California.
‘These two organizations jointly will offer the following kinds of
assistance on a national basis, supported .through our grant, and
. they will offer this assistance to anyone who requests it, any
member of the American public who requests it.
“They will offer onsite consultation with groups of parents or citi-
zens who wish to get together to tackle this problem in their fami-
lies and communities. Parent leadership, who have been successful
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in one locale, will go down the road 50 mlles, for example, with
travel funds supported by us——

Senator Spxcter. I would imagine that people would be very in-
tb;:‘rested in the materials, if y0u can find a distribution system for

em

Ms. HornEr. That is another function of this grant, which is to
offer materials alréady in existence, but with some reproduction
supported by our grant, to anyone who asks for it.

nator SpecTER. How big a grant are you talking about?

Ms HornER. We are talking about $175,000.

Senator SpectEr. That does not go too far, does it?

Ms. HorNER. Yes, it does. Ordinarily a grant of that m itude
would not go far at all, but in its capacity to generate volunteer
efforts, there is a great magnification of the effect. So that if you

have a Sarent who wishes to help another parent 20 miles down .

the road to get going on one of these groups-to work with the
schools or the law enforcement officials: what happens is that if we
provide only the gas money and other expénses we are going to get
10 hours, 2({ hours of service at no cost to the taxpayer. So actually
it is not as small as it sounds.

Senator SpecTER. Has there been a spurt of volunteerism as a
result of President Reagans emphasis on volunteerism? Do you
find more people coming forward?

Mr. PaukeN. Absolutely. I think there is. no question about it. It

is a combination of things. I think in the drug-abuse area, the spurt

.of voluntarism is due to parents seeing the dangers, and I think
young people are starting to get involved to a greater extent, and
that is critical, the combination of parents and young people.

But in so many other areas, our retired senior volunteer program
is increasing. Older Americans——

Senator SPECTER. Is that the Foster Grandparent program"

Mr. PAUukeN. Well, it is a separate program.

Senator SPECTER. Semor Companion program?

Mr. PAUkeN. Senior Companion program and——

Senator Specter. How many people do you have?

Mr. PAUKEN. We have over 300,000.

Senator SpectER. 300,000 volunteers?

Mr. Pauken. Even with budget cuts, the"re are more volunteers
today than there were 12 months ago.

Senator SPECTER. And you have the’ capacxty to put out a mailing
and say here is information on drugs, pass it out?

Mr. PaukeN. We are encouraging our retired senior volunteer .

programs, which are locally run and locally controlled, to do more
in this area. There are a number of retired senior volunteers work-
ing in this area, but we will be getting the information to them, as
well as to our State and reglonal directors, to encourage them.

We see our role more as a catalyst, identifying successful efforts
in the private sector, working with those individuals and groups
who are committed, who are dedicated, and who have a proven
track record, and helping them along, not t ing to come in with a
new larfe Federal bureaucracy or a new Federal program. And
that is, I think, consistent with the President’s message to the Na-
tional Alliance for Business, in which he urged us to provide some
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seed money, pump-priming money to serve as a catalyst to help get
some of these things going, or encourage them to do more.

Senator SPECTER. What is your budget, Mr. Pauken? .
Mr. PAUKEN. Our budget is approximately $130 million totally.

Most of that goes to the Older American volunteer program.

Senator SPecTER. And how big is your paid staff? - .

Mr. Pauken. Our paid staff right now is 800. With a separation
of the Peace Corps into ansindependent agency, we will be approxi-
mately 500 to 550. ‘

Senator SpecTER. Has that not yet been completed? .

Mr. Pauken. That is in the process of being completed right now.

Senator SPrcTER. When do you expect that to be completed?

Mr. Pauxen. I would anticipate that would be completed by the .
middle of February. -

Senator SPecTER. Where are your offices in town? :

Mr. Paukin. Our offices are at 806 Connecticut Avenue, NW,,
near Jackson Square. _ :

Senator SPECTER. Do you stay there and the Peace Corps goes
somewhere else? / ) e
- Mr. PauxeN. We will stay in the same basic facilities. There will
be some interagency agreements. .

Senator Specrer. Just change the locks on some doors?

Mr. PaukeN. It is a long story, as you know, Senator.

Senator SpecTER. Well, I really commend you on you efforts, all
of you. I had occasion to be on the National Advisory Council of the
Peace Corpe some years ago. It was part of ACTION at that time
and I know the work of ACTION. I know the work of your center
on drugs, and it is very, very important work. I wish that the time
permitted us to spend more time and go into greater detail.

One of the grave problems here in the-Senate is that theré is so
little time, and so many pressures, and so many activities, but [ am
really pleased to hear about what is being done. '_ ,

I would like to see us fashion a way on a systematic basis to get
this information into the hands of more people; get it into the
hands of all the boards of education. I think they have to make the
decision'as to whether they are going to use it for the first graders,
and the parents have to make the decision as to how they dre going
to use it. But if we can find a distribution pattern, I think it would
be an enormous help. ‘ L

Mr. PAUKEN. Senator, just one final point. There is a lot of inter-
est, both in the corporate and foundation world, in terms of making
this happen. So we hope that in a few months from now we will be
able to provide some information about increased distribution. -

Senator Specter. I wish you would stay in touch with Bruce
Cohen, who is my chief counsel, and give us the benefit of your
thinking as you move along. '

Dr. DURELL. We have described in our testimony several methods
of distribution that we are involved in as well.

Senator SPECTER. Sounds good. Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Pauken follows:]

37
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PREPARED STATeMENT OF Thoas W, Pauken

/

Mr. Chairman, it is an honor to appear before this subcommittee
today to describe the efforts the ACTION Agency is making to
mobilize and support volunteers working in the crucial area of
drug abuse prevention.

ACTION has decided to use jts resources to address the problem of
youthful drug use, not only because of the disheartening -- indeed,
frightening -- levels of drug use by American teenagers and pre- ’
teenagers, but also because there is reason to believe that vol-
unteer efforts can ameliorate this problem to-'a significant degree.

Our activities, which I'll describe in-a moment, are based on a
number of premises: .

1) Prevention efforts must be directed to the pre-teenager
" - and teenageé, as the populations most physically and : ,
psychologically vulnerable and the most prone to drug
use.
'I
2) vVvolunteers must engage in prevention activities, because
prevention is the sphere, in part, of the non-professionil,
whereas treatment requires a level of expertise not amenable
© @tO widespread volunteer mobilization. )
/
3) volunteers must be enlisted to combat use of all illicit
' drugs, but especially the use of marijuana, as the most
common drug of introduction to the drug culture. v
1 3
4) Drug use must be attacked to some degree in the context"
of a range of ills which afflict young people -- juvenile.
crime, running away, alienation from family and community
authority -- because use of drugs is ten associated
with these ills.

-
3

In exploring ways in which volunteers can mitigate some of these
problems, we have concluded that there are three causes of drug
me, among other factors which form the basis of ACTION'S program.

Oﬁe is the decline in family unity and in firm, confident parental

‘guidance of the younq; another, is & pervasive absence of purposeful,

geperous, and wholesome activity available to young people themselves.
A third cause is the lack of community-vide mobilization’ to create

and insist upon a drug-free environment -- in schools, parks, recrea-
tion centers, places of entertainment -- in short, wherever ‘Yyouth’
arg free to congregate. Instead, paraphernalia shops, "do-drugs®

music,and publications, and ambiguous messages from the adult
world in general communicate a sometimes false, but perceptible
tolerance for drug use.
To support families, to encourage, especillly, parents as volunteers
agsinst drug use, ACTION is
-- offering technical assistance to parent groups which
are forming in large numbers nationwide to take
responsibility for providing young people accurate
information, strong guidance, and supportive and
informed community institutions. This assistarce
will be offered by telephone, through a national
toll-free number; through on-site assistance, as
ACTION support allows leadership of successful
parent groups to ‘help those in the process of
formation; through conferences and workshops;
and through the provision of accurate up-to-
date medical and scientific information,
presented in laymen's terms.
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-~ testing a model which trains both adult and youth
groups in methods of working with less informed
- peers to create a drug-free environment.

-~ working with the White House op neetings designed
to introduce parent movement leadership to leaders
in the corporate, entertainment, and voluntary

-association worlds who may be of assistance to

\ .~ parents organizing to prevent drug use.

: To insure the availability to these volunteers Q§ medical and
| & scientific information which reflects the latest, most accurate
| information regarding the health effects of drug use and other .
psychoactive drugs, ACTION -is supporting the efforts of the
American Council on Marijuana to provide this information
‘in a form readily accessible to the ordinary citizen.

Because we believe that simple boredom is often a ére-;ondition

to experimentation with drugs, and because we believe that

young people need to serve their communities in order to mature
successfully, we have instituted a new program, called Young \
Volunteers in ACTION. . This program, in place at 12 sites across /
the nation with more to come in FY 82, mobilizes young people tor '
part-time, non-stipended service to their communities. Although

we anticipate that some of these Young Volunteers will engage in
- peer drug education, the focus is more general in its drug use

prevention goal: ~youth who are busy and challenged helping

others through a wide range of -services will have little use for

the escapist nature of drug use.

To assist young people who are at unusually high risk of drug
use -- the emotionally and academically trbubled, especially
those from single-parent homes -- ACTION is testing a model
program conducted bg_the Big Brothers/Big Sisters Organization
of Nassau County, N.Y. This program adopts the adult big brother
model in order to use mature high school juniors and seniors to
work with and serve as companions to younger children judged to
be at risk of-juvenile crime, academic failure, or emot ional
difficulties. If this program succeeds, as we expect it will,
it holds forth the promise of replication nationwide through
private voluntary associations. .4

Bht parents and young people alone cannot eradicate drug use.

They need the support of their entire communities to achieve this

goal. Churches, neighborhood, groups, law enforcement agencies,

and school officials all need to work together in behalf of our

youth. One of the primary means of achieving this unity of purpose,

we believe, is through the support of local and national business

and industry. - .

Althouqgh volunteers cost little, they do cost something -~ in time,
expertise, and money. Soneone must coordinate the efforts of all =
these groups. Informational materials and media campaigns require
financial resources. Often, it is the business leadership in
communities and nationwide which has access to thesec resources.

For this reason, ACTION's Policy and Planning and Voluntary Liaison
staff have been active in seeking out, identifying, and encouraging
such support. In recent months, ACTION staff have made numerous
presentations to such corporate leadership, in the interest of
spreading the word about successful corporate efforts. One in
particular has shown considerable promise. I refer to the
nation-wide Channel One youth recreation, work, and service
programs partly funded through the National Institute on Drug
Abuse. This program has been assisted through major contributions
of money and organizational expertise by the Prudential Insurance
Company of America. ACTION wants to help stimulate this kind of
public-private partnership.

.
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_ Our Agency is committed to the incressed participation of volunteers
in the prevention of drug abuse. The combination of strengthening
the family unit,” increasing opportunities for youth in their communi-
ties, and greater involvement of parents and young people in drug use
prevention can begin turning the next generation of America's leader-
ship away from the self-destructive path of the drug culture.

We believe there can be no more serious challenge to our civic
spirit than voluntary cooperation toward this goal.

-~
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Senator SprcrEr. I would like*to call now Judge John Milligan, -

Circuit Judge, Fifth Circuit Court of Ohio, representing thé Nation-
al Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges.

Welcome, Judge Milligan. We very much fapprecui_te: your travel-

' ing from Ohio to be with us this morning: I note-from your record

that you have served 17 years on the Stark County Family Court

‘and are the past president of the National Council of Juvenile and

" Family Court Judges.

. - I regret that we find it x{ewssary, as 1 announced, at the outéet,
to abbreviate our .proceedings because a joint session of Congress '

was scheduled after these hearings were established. :
‘But,we are very pleased to have you here. The focus of our atten-
tion is what to do about juvenile crime, and with particular concen-

~ tration on, the drug issue. ' ‘ s

- JUVENILE AND FAMILY COURT JUDGES - :

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN MILLIGAN, CIRCUIT JUDGE, FIFTH
CIRCUIT OF. OHIO, REPRESENTING THE NATIONAL COUNCIL OF

"Judge MiLLIGAN. Thank you, Senator. It is my pleasure to be

_ here and to suggest first that obviously we are grateful for your in-

terest in juvenile justice and what you have done as you have
picked this up. T know I am talking to a former prosecutor, so it is
interesting for a judge to be talking to a prosecutor about this
issue. . R S } _
My first two points were made clearly to me last night as I drove
home from work and listened to the news. The network news-in

‘Canton, Ohio; recounted five youngsters apparently that you had
" hete yesterday, who were telling their story.

~ The first point I wanted to make is one you obviously know. The
judge is the wrong person to ask about what is “going down” on
the streets. We see only the tip of the iceberg. I hope and I think it

~ is important that judges understand that we are not seeing the

_whole picture.

What we are seeing, however, are the most serious cases. One of *
the things that.the judicial process has to offer, that really no
other agencies offer, is that in the coercive situation, we are:the
first agency that .sees not just the youngster: in drouble, but the-

youngster and his farnily.

The second point is one of which you are well aware. That is the
lack of reliable data in terms of statigtics. These kids made that
pretty clear to you yesterday. I pi up last night the Philadel-
phia juvenile court annual report. I know that is your home dis-
trict. It reports 6 percent of their total caseload were drug cases.

Now you know and I know that that is not the way it is. The fact -

is that those are simply the cases where that is the primary

charge. : :
Senator SPECTER. at would your estimate be as to the realistic

_ figure?

“Judgé MILLIGAN. | have sat day after day on the bench and won-
dered about this. In one period of 3 weeks in 1980, as I heard ¢on-
secutive cases, and these were dependency cases, unruly or chil-
dren in need of supervision, runaways, school problems, home prob-

" lems, as well as criminal delinquency cases, boys and girls, 70 per-

'_ | A
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“cent of the cases clearly acknowledge in one way or another that

“use,. and in some. cases abuse, was a factor in the case. And
yet the percentage of those cases that came to the court for- that
reason were minim

-So obviously one of the tasks is 1dent1ficatlon of those cases that
do involve substance abuse. And I think we are beginning to learn

. some techniques as to how to get along with that. 'I‘he pomt is that‘ .

statistics simply do not tell the story to you.

I have -been wrestling with some of the pi'oblems we faoe And, :

may | suggest that one of the dimensions we must deal with is cre-

.ated by a generational cultural gap with that large group of young
- people,foday who perceive substance abuse, and I include alcohol,
- as a value of choice, as a positive value in their lives.

I think that creates a real problem for the system in terms of :
how we deal i in a nonpermissive, coercive way, if we determine that

this problem is as serious as I am convinced it is, with thoee young-
sters-who do not want to change.
It is easy- to provide counseling and elp and redlrectlon for
people who want to change, but the judi¢ial process is dealingfre-
quently with youngsters who do not want to.
Senator SpECTER. And how go you deal with that problem? Judge
Milligan, your testimony w1ll made a part of the record in full.
But how do you deal with the juvenile who does not wish to,

change?
" Judge MiLLIGAN. In my judgment at this point, with the state-of- -

the-art—and you may have heard some things that we need to
learn about—with those youngsters who do not want to change, it
seems that the two successfiil options are not acceptable to the gen:
eral public and are not acceptable to government.

One represents the impact of religious conversion. I have seen it
work: I know that youngsters have changed in their value system
as a result of a religious experience. It causes them to move on

with some determmatnon and consistency and change patterns .of -,

life.
- Very Early ‘on in my career I spent some tlme with Dave Wllker-
son on the streets of New York, and I am satjsfied that that is one

model that works. But it is not acceptable.from a total community -

point of view, and perhaps from a government-fundmg point of
view,

A second way that may work is equally unacceptable, and it hag
to do with regimentation, discipline, firm, militaristic controls that
may even sound like mind control. And I am’ aware of two pro-
grams in Ohio, both of which have gone under, that were having
success in controlling youngsters, getting them off, getting them
onto a new pattem of life that was very reglmented dlsclplme, and
almost scarey in terms of———

. Senator SPECTER. In any of your ad)udlcatlons, do you ever deal.
with either of those remedies?

Judge MILLIGAN. Yes, but never without parental ¢ t. Those

are. options that are explored with the parents. If the patents and

those who are counseling them agree that this is an optlon of
choice, we have frequently used it. Yee, indeed. !
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" Senator SpecTerR. And what do you do if the parents oobject to

_beth of those options and you have a 14-year-old drug user who has-

taken to minor burglary? Do you incarcerate?

Judge MiLLIGAN. Sure. That becomes the treatment of choice if

there is ‘no other option in terms of a youngster turning around

and straightening out. And I do not thin ‘anybody is kidding us in -

terms of whether the straight incarceration program works insofar
as changing attitudes. I am t chairman of the Youth Services
Advisory Board in-Ohio, which is the group that advises the Youth
Commission, the agency that provides custodial care. And the con-
stant hue and cry of all of us is: Get programs in place, working,
using the techniques that are already available under coercion to

.deal with these kids. -

And mai' I suggest one that I have seen work? I am a jogger,and
I am highly impressed with what has  happened in some of the in-
stitutions with youngsters who have.gotten into jogging as a way of
getting high. It sounds corny, but I have seen it work. I went down

to our major institution in Ohio for juvenile delinquent kids and I
was really impressed with the extent to which these kids were in

" competition with themselves to improve themselves in their capac- -

ity to jog and run. o ,
“Almost everybody can run. They can experience success because
they are not competing against ani;l;ody else or the world. = -

I ran.into a kid about 3 months ago that I recognized on our
strest. He had been out of the institution for over a year. I said,
“How you doing?” He says, “Fine; I am not back in.” 1 said, ‘‘Quit
conning me.” He said, “I am not conning you; I am giving you the
truth. I am straight.” I said, “Are you running?’ He said, “I sure -
am.” And this kid is a jogger: Lo

" He really gets high 1n his enthusiasm, and 1 guess there is some

hysiological evidence at this point that the brain really does get
. lgl: from jogging. : o o ‘
nator SPECTER. There is no constitutional prohibition against a

~ sentence to jogging, is there? .

~L

""Judge MILLIGAN. No. As a matter of fact, we have set up a pro-
gram in our community with volunteers from the Y and we are.
having limited success in fathers jogging with their sons. Jhterest-
ing and hopeful kinds of things. And that is not just for drug cases.
nator Specter. Judge Milligan, one of the issues commanding

the attention of this subcommittee has been to try to’ identify the

g_otential career criminal at an early stage. District Attorney Reno’
rom Dade County, Fla., was just going through a chronology which
is similar to one I have seen and I am sure you have, where there
is a truancy at 8§ or 9 and vandalism at 10 or 11 and petty larcen%'
and burglary at 13 and robbery at 15 and- armed robbery at 17,
leading perhaps to homicide. - ' '
What suggestions ‘would you have for the subcommittee on the

_ issue of early detection of the crime cycle?

~ of a child. As long as we continue to b
tion of the Bayh Act in 1974, that children have a right to freedom,

" Judge MILLIGAN. The first thing I think has to happen is that the
Federal Government has got to ¢ angg its perspective of the status
lieve, as we did at the incep-
instead of a right to custody, we are going to create situations out
of which that yen for freedom, whatever a child determines that

.13
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that means is going to lead him in paths agamst authornty and di-
rection.

We- have to, I think, accept as a natlonal licy that children’ -

have a right to custody. They are not little adults. And when we

" begin' to think about it that way, then we befm to structure custo-

~ dial situations that can help youngsters develop the kinds of value
‘systems that are contrary to this predominant subculture value.

-~ Senator SPECTER !What kind of custody do you have in mmd"

Judge MiLLIGAN. ] have in mind parental custody.. - = .

Senator Specter. They have that now, do they not?. :

Jl:ddge MiLLIGAN. No: ¥m talkmg about remforcement of parental
custody. )

. "Senator Specrer. How do you do that?

" Judge MiLLIGAN. Well, one of the things you do not do is give li- -

cense, for instance in the runaway issue. You do not provide
through the Federal Government alternatives in the runaway area

[ -

that detract from and destror parental rights and responsibilities. .
y

Senator SPECTER. Specifically what do you mean by.that?
Judge MiLLIGAN. [ mean, and we are going back now to some of

the things that you and I have talked about in terms of what hap- .

Kz ned under the Bayh Act with the Federal mandate that States
v

e no authority with respect to children who do not commit
crimes, in terms of custodial provision of care. And we have gone
_through these horror stories of the youngsters who run away from
home and who are sheltered and the parents are not motlﬁ about
it and the parents are not involved.

And it grows out of, in my judgment, thls attitude that chlldren
are little adults with a right to freedom, and not a right to custody.
, We need to reinforce pare }a.l custody.

Senator SPECTER. Do you'have any other custodlal aspect in mind
besides parental custody? :

Judge MILLIGAN. Well I think we must as a society recogmze
that to the extent parental custody is inappropriate for a number
of reasons—I will give you one in a divorce case, for instance,
- where the mother was continuing to use the shotgunmng of mari-
huana into the mouth of a young child as a sedative for the child
.- when it would cry, and evtdence of neglect. That chlld needs custo-

dxal permanent care:

We are moving 'in_beautiful ways toward prmn&mg permanence“ AN
' for children in alternate homes if “the parentd are not going. tol"

make it.  am talkm%Vh ut a progressive kind of thing.

Senator SPECTER a
" tion of potential career criminals among juveniles?
~ Judge MiLLiGaN. Talk to the first grade teachers about those

_youngsters who have come to the first grade ill prepared for that
experience. And I am not being facetious about this.

nator SPECTER. You think you can detect them as early as the
first grade?

Judge MiLLiGAN. 1 think you can see those children who are be-
ginning to develop those characteristics of .disrespect for authority
at that early age. I certainly do. -

I would like to say one other thing in this area- in‘terms of inves-
tigation of crime. NK‘ Cohen and I spoke in the hall just a moment

about it. I am concerned in the area of drug enforcement with juve-

t is your suggestion for the earliest detec-
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niles with the problem not only of generational ga\;’;, but also the

problem of detection and arrest.
"As a court of appeals judge now, I can say to you that we are

L3

_hearing many cases of the kind with which you are historically fa-

-~

miliar. Law officers are confused and ineffective in their investiga- -
tion because they do not know the perimeters of entrapment. And

, of all the areas of law enforcement that are difficult because of -

where the rights of one person’s privacy end and intrusion begins, I
would say that drug law enforcement is one of them. a

As | read case after case upon appeal— ‘ o
. Senator SexcTEr. You are talking about edugating the officers as
to the law on entrapment? ' - : .

" Judge MiLLiGAN. Well, and I maybe even am talking about can

the Congress help us with respect to the laws of evidence on en-
trapment? If we believe that this problem is so serious with chil-

~ dren that it is destroying youngsters, then maybe the right of| pri-.

vacy of that youngster has to yield to the greater good,’ at some
point, under obvious strict restraints, toward determining the

_truth. .

Senator Sprxcrer. Judge Milligan, 1 would appreciate it if you

. would pursue that matter with subcommittee staff after the hear-

_ings end. I would really like to do that now, but-the timetable just

does not permit it. ' . .
Judge MILLIGAN. One other thing that I would like to ask for:
Can the Congress please give us some help as we have in alcohol

- detection now? We need scientific, simple, cheap ways to determine

when a person is under the influence of drugs. And law enforce-

‘ment is having a terrible time with this issue, and the problems of
" proof are overwhelming. ' ‘

Senator Spxcter. Well, again, let me ask you to develop that fur-
ther with staff. I would appreciate it. : o

Judge MILLIGAN. May I make one other point? Do I have time?

_Senator SPECTER. Sure. N . -

Judge MILLIGAN. I would like to make a point about funding pro-
grams because I think it is important. I would really be excited if
this committee might perceive that in funding programs of coercive
drug control, you might think about letting free enterprise work.
There are all kinds of agencies out there in' this country that are
working with kids. S ‘ /

I think it would- be fiscally responsible and probably give us
better return on the buck if-we would, rather than fund programs
that might possibly work in the future, that we say to that great
system that is already in place: You come up with a program that
works and you show us that it works, and we will fund it.

Senator SpecTER. Sounds good. Judge, I am very reluctant to end
this discussion because you have so much to offer, but the time just
mandates it. Please continue our discussion with the staff, I would
be grateful. .

Judge MILLIGAN. I certainly will, Senator! Thank you.

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much for coming.

[The prepared statement of Judge Milligan follows:] "
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PREPARED STATEMENT oF JupGe Jomm R Mn,uém

COMMENTS CONCERNING DRUGS AND JUVENILES

Mr. Chlirun_:' ,
1 sppreciste ‘the opportunity to spesk to this important lsgislative

committee concerning an issue that is s large part of s problsm that {s -

threatsning the fabric of our soclety -- chfidren and drug uss and abuass.
Judicial hrspoain Althou(h many peopls in nch comumnlty bellevs,

thefr junnﬂt judg‘ is ths suthority on youth and drug uss, ths fact s .

that ths juvenile judp is oftan ths lnt person to deal with ths problems
snd thni; only {n bhk;l'lly selactive and sggravsted instances. A highsr

‘Jeval of intelligence ss to ths sxtent of ths probl-n would bs gleansd from

the honest testimony of children in ths schools of ths nation. 1 will con-
fine mj comments to expsrisnces and psrceptions arising out of ths u.luﬂh-

istration of judicial duties over sighteen yesrs as n juvenile judge in s
¢o\mty> composed of 350,000 peopls and having 29 sepsrsts schoal districts.
" Statistics. ‘

Bewsre of statistics as any sdequste mdicator of the nature and
mem of the problem of drug use snd sbhuse. For examplo the wvast
nnjorhy of csses coming before ths juvenils court involving drup do not
involve charges. of violation of the drug laws. Ws see ntrong-lrmod rob-
bery, sggravsted burglary, breaking snd sntsring bf doctors' officss,
theft, receiving stolen goods and sssault ss ths ;;z;inni-y charge, only to
léqrn thet, in fsct, ths purpose or motive l.sel_iind ths crﬁno chu-go;d"wn

N

So also, many of the status offenders, schodl problems, runawsy

drug-related (either ths purchsse or use of drugs).

youth. snd incorrigibls youth are not chu-pd ss drug dfendeu. but ars

ch;rpd ss unruly, or dependent or as chfldren in need of mpervldon

ERIC
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Statistics wifll not bagin to tell the story.

kept s record of cases coming before ths court thst involved drug use or

On ths othsr hand, for s period of three weeks in 1980, .1 personaily
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M ‘1 found thet this issue wss admiMly involved in seventy poreiut
of the cases. 1 supposs that the figure wag reslly higher. A school admin-
istrator recently told me that their biggest problem in the junior high s
that fully fifty percent of the students come to schoal high on marijuana.

‘Law enforcement -- very difficult.
1 soe five barriers {o effective lsw enforcement:

1.  Sub-cultursl fsctors. The youth sub-culture that 4§ expert

,unun‘ with, or regularly using, drugs and akohol is generally outside
the traditional lnstlmﬁon'd. ﬁ-mwori/t such as the family, the schodl, snd
youth sgencles. There is s sense in which this culture has sttached s
positive, appropriate value upon drugs and alcohol. (wnw m;anlng to
overstretch the andlogy, the current posture of the homosexual sub-
culture fs compareble.) An individusl within s sub-culture that balieves i
is right, end law is wrong, is unlikely to be dssusded from its per-
spective by law enforcement. ' '

_ Thus, Dsve Wilkerson, founder of Teen Challenge, persussively
srgues jhat the only cure for drug addiction is religlous conversion;
anything short of that is Mtng This point d view ludl to the u-gu-
went thst we do youth no: ‘tavor by coddling drug oxpoﬂm.ntltlon and
lbun.

-

3., Avalabllity. Drugs, particulsrly marfiuans and alechal, are now
resdily svaflable within virtuslly every facet of the youth culture. The
fact 'thlt drugs have become such s problem with the middle clsss is, in s
sense, 8 blulin‘ in disguise, for it finally ellll to our collective urgent
sttention s problem thst historically was not ss widespread in fts knpod

Por hw enforcement, impounding drugs is like trying to stop s nh-

storm with s tucuﬁ.

- b
~J

-
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3. Mebfiity. The mobility of families, yowth, and the purveyors of
druges and alcohal ‘!hr!hvcr exacerbates the problems of law enforcerent.

4. Age differentisl. Becawse lew enforcement officers are sdult,
sccess to juveniles in investigation and enforcement is very ‘aftficult,
. . /
particularly if entrepment is 10 be avolded.

5. Arrest and prosscution. Mln.y of my colleagues suggest that

inw:tt-tk_m and srrest n l. juvenils drug ocase, vlthou entrapment, is
slmost impossble. Generally, an informant is essential. Prosecution is )
equally difficult, puhbuhﬂy when Vdrvn: use is perceived s social, not
legal, problem. . .
Judges are icressingly dismayed by the reslity of dealing with juven-
fies invdived in drugs while the peddiers_are untund and unprosscuted,
particularly when the fudge perceives the juvenlie as s victim rather than

s

an offender.

The generstion gap. Parents simply don't understand the drug /

scene. Over and over ! have heard pcnnil express relief and gratitude

when they learned that their chfld was sbusing alcohol, not drugs. Par-

ents can understand drunksnness, generally for obvious ressons.
1

There i an enormous need for education of adulta. However, such
education must follow determination -of what really is the truth.
Need for facts.

At this point in history, perhaps more than anything else, our nation

needs to know with rdhbh. suthoritative certainty what the truth ia
éonccrnlng drugs and their effect upon juw‘nnu. The drug mb-eunu‘n

. rejecta s firm antidrug posture of (onrnmvm and other u:hoﬁts,, un-
supported by relisble evidence. )

Let's get on with the task of finslly dotomjling the sddictive, impli-

ostions of the drugs ss well as the paychological dependence.

exd
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lot'l find out howdrugl effect the health of juveniles. ('l'fnneoﬁ )

nnhtbn- of the impect of marffuana upon m have hun hdpml.

Jlth-ytnuoemu) [ '
What are the social results of drug use and sbuse? -

Obvicusly, sclentift ‘ressarch needs to be expedited.

~ What o do. o ! -
The following recommendstions are being made with s hopeful senei-
tivity to the funding resiities facing the federd pmnmm.;i

A. Reach closure on facts.

| B ‘Nl‘ld successful prmj-- ot

1. Education of parents, youth, and youth lesders, (induding -

teschers, judges, polioe, and othot.y;uth workers) and provide training.
If the suggestion is correct that drug sddiction is ”l!-dutrueun
bohavbr thct can only be stopped when the tndividusl so d.cldn. edu-

‘uthn is our best dotonn. And untfl we know whst dse work-. let's

lpond our money on what is likely to do the moet pood

o

-

3. ldentification of users. ‘
R is tncredible considering the nature of the problem that law enforce-
mert and .other authotitiss stfl have no simple, inexpensive, sdentific
technique for measurement of whether a person is under the influence of
drugs. (We need a drug "breathalyser.")
Another barrier to identification of users is the issue d where the
right of privecy of a child omh and ylelds to pcnntnl concern for his
self-destructive behavior. '

el
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3. Law enferesment and treining . ) )

Law enfrcement officers sre highly frustrated with the dilemme of

enforemment versus entrepment. Can federal government help them?
/

4. Progrsms and services. ) 9
1 submit that the federal government. should be slow to fund programs
dealing with this -indn}hm for all of the sbowe reasons.
' rot&mm'mmammmummumnm.x

“Jropose what is, to meny, s drastic inversion.

LET'S LET Inn ENTERPRISE WORK TO DRVELOP RFPFECTIVRE PRO-
GRAMS, AND PUND ONLY THOSE PROGRAMS THRAT DBHON..STRA‘TI 80C-
CESS. (We have long held the view that ssed money innovative bro.;nm
are the hallmark of the federal initiative. Curiously, even in finding
these programs we have Mentifled funding w‘th projects that ﬁdd the
highest potential for success.) '

-1 believe we can no longer afford this smorgasbord luxury. A

From g¢ight yesrs of experience with OJIDP-funded programs, we
should heve learned s number of lessons about program potential for
success: .

A, ‘jCoun-dun‘. per se, is s wsste of time and money.

B. Group counselling is generally ineffective unliess tightly con-

trolled snd specific. ' ;

.C. Programs to work must be directly related to the probhm to be

solved. oo ' 7

D. ‘Sucoessful programs t_oich skills that /onablg people to experience °

minlngm lucgcu.l '

E. Among the most successful programs n’ro thoss that mvolve the

whole tunﬁy and focus upon improvement of communication skills,
snd thess programs only work when the parties are given s
structured opportunity to o;pfhnnt. and there is follow-up.

- ot .
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7. Programs to be sucoessful need the potentisl of wanctions ss s
reinfyrcement . ' ' . ,j

G. Sanctions need-to be directly related to ths flegal behavior.

* 'R. Programs do .not wofk unless there is strong falow-through and

4

monhoﬂng.

Conclusion. ‘ . )

This juvenile judge beiieves thst under the current state of -the
knowl'.d"o. determining what the facts asre concerning drugs and die-
semineting thet inforpation in e creditible wey to the general public will
be more offective tJEP the funding of specific programs. To the extent
progreme are fundd@isthe tine has come to let the fres enterpriss system
operste and fund those pro'n'm-' that can prowe they nryﬁcgnlml in

" achisving the result contemplated. .

1 _nunk' this hono'nbh ocommittee ﬁs- the opportunity to express one
fudge's opinfon sbout one of the most pervasive, difficult problems in the
- . ﬁ '
1980's. '
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'Senator SpecTER. I would like to call now Ms. Penny Grodenchik,

president of Gaudenzia, and Dr. Sidney Shankman, executive direc-

-tor and founder of Second Genesis, Alexandria, Va.

Your statements will be 'made a part of the record. Because of
the time limitations, permit me to ask you to give us the benefit of

your experience on Gaudenzia house, which has an illustrious

'record in Philadelphia going back for more than a decade. How

might we deal with the problems of drugs and juveniles.

STATEMENT OF PENNY GRODENCHIK, PRESIDENT, GAUDENZIA,
INC., PHILADELPHIA, PA.

Ms. Gnonxk’cﬁlx. Well, our eikperier}ce has beenno'ne,of the most

- effective ways to deal with drug use in juveniles is peer counseling.

One of our policies is as part of our reentry phase of our program,

the people that have been through the program work in the schools

and with comgaunity groups and in an outreach center to educate
and rap with young people who are involved or look as if they are
going to become involved in that kind of behavior along the line.

Se')nator Specter. How many people do you have at Gaudenzia
now?

Ms. GRODENCHIK. In residential treatment we have 132; outpa-
tient, we have 400. ' - v

Senator SpecteR. Do you have jnstallations besides the main fa-
cility in Westchester?

Ms. GRODENCHIK. Yes, we have them throughout the eastern part
of the State: Harrisburg, Lancaster, Westchester, Philadelphia.

Senator SPECTER. And those are outpatient?

Ms. GrRoDENCHIK. Inpatient and outpatient.

Senator SpecTteR. How many do you have in Harrisburg?

Ms. GropENCHIK. We have one inpatient facility. We have three
outpatient programs: Two Hispanic, one just in Cumberland and
Perry Counties. ‘

Senator SpecTerR. When you talk about peer assistance, how
young does that peer assistance go?

Ms. GrobeNcHIk. Normally by the time somebody is ready for

reentry, the youngest age would be 17.-At that time they are nor--

mally back in the public school system. Older-than that, the
would be in the outpatient center in Philadelphia, talking to yout
that have been referred through the juvenile justice system on an
outpatient basis.. -

Senator SpECTER. What is the earliest age that your experience
shows somgone is dealing with drugs?

Ms. GropbENcHIK. We have had verbal statements of 9 years old, -

one young girl of 8. Our youngest person in the program now is 13.
We have two 13-year-olds.

Senator SpEcTER. And what is your best recommendation as to
how to deal with such an 8-year-old? :

Ms: GropENcHIK. Find out why they feel that they should be in- -

volved in- that. I think that there is something missing, that that
child is facing a gap in their lives, whether it is support from par-

ents or friends or siblings, and try 4o reconstruct whatever 'that

support system is they need in some other way. .
e prepared statement of Ms. Grodenchik follows:]

[
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Perevy GRODENCHIK

Gaudenzia, Inc., a nul.tibpurpese htnin service agency,
was founded in 1968 as a progru designed to treat substance
abuse and other forms of self—destructive behavior; educate

the public as to the cause and prevention of the above pro- -

blems; and, research the causes, ‘prevention and treatment of

dysfunctiqmlsbehavior' patterns.

For the past thirteen years, Gaudenzia has been providing
drug rehabilitation and other treatment iervices to the resi-
dents of Pennsylvania. The success of our progrens s based
upon the provision of a comprehensive approach o the ‘Individual

client's rehabilitation.’ S : ‘ ’

) . The Gaudenzia program began with one residential facility
for long term intensi‘i‘:etherapy in North PM«hdelph-ia. which

is sti11 in operation. It has since expl.nded to encompass

ten facilities and triirteen separate progrm; throughout the

state.

By 1970 a second residential flcﬂity in West Chester

_and an outpatient program in Philadelphia were establ{shed.

In' 1972 Gaudenzia added a third residenthl flcthy. Jocated
in Palmyra (the Central Pennsylvania region) for short term

residential treatment, referred to as Concept-90.

As Gaudenzia expa}nded‘. its prerams became diverse and

‘ specialized in response to the needs _demonstrited by the client

population. Steadily developing new programs, Gaudenzia now
fulfills the needs of several clidnt populations, serving two

rn'ajor geographical areas. Gaudenzia's programs and services

-{nclude; residential rehabilitation, outpatient treatment,

prevention services, adolescent group home care, transitional

53




. i .
living for mentally disabled, vocational training,community

and parenting groups, speaking engagements and volunteer training.

losidentia] Therapeutic Coununitx,? rograms

. Gaudenzia provides residential drug and .alcohol rehab111tatlon in four

facilities, two in the Eastern Region (1n Philadelphla and West Chester)
and two 1n the Western Region (in Harrisburg and Lancaster) Treatment

in these programs is based on the Therapeutic Community modality, in
5 e

_uhlch:emphasis is placed on resocialization, and basic personality

change is brought about through a unique group of behavioral methods.
An important facet of this therapy is a home-llke.'exfenged family

atmospheré.

This treatment varies in 1ength frpm a three-month program tp a long-term
program requiring from twelve to eighteen months to complete, all in-
volving intensive group and individual therapy and educational/?ocational
programs. The Vantage facility in Lancaster is specifically, designed

for alcohoTc and cross-addicted women and their children. There are
very few such faéilitfes in the country, which offer a treatment alter-
native to women who would normally rgsist it due to parental responsi-

bilities and the fear of having their children‘separated from them.

R I :
- A1l of the residential programs emphasize the final phase of treatment,

ERIC
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considered to be a critical point in recrery frem addiction. A separate

"Re-entry" phase gradually reintegrafes the reéovering individual into
the community mafnstream - adapting to employment, self-sufficiency,
and personal achievment.

/ ' ;
Therapeutic Community treatment is widely recognized as one of the most

successful methods to’,/
of programs this is evidenced by the fact that over 33% of the full-tfpe
staff are Sucgessful program completions, and a signjficant portion of

these hold upper-level management positions. ‘ ;.

-

effect sustained recovery. In Gaudenzia's network
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. Of the five Gaudenzia outpatient prograns two are in Philadelphia serving
the county at large, tuo are in Harrisburg and one fn. Hechanicsburg» .

Each of these programs provide the sameabasic;treotuent’regime which
includes {ndividual, family and vocational counseling. aid with 30b
-and school placement. legal and other professional services. but dj#fer
in the uay these services are delivered . . .

One of the tuo prograns in Philadelphia serves the adult populatioﬁ

“The other program designed to meet the spetfa) needs of the polydrug
abuser: under - the age of twenty-one. Data collected on the Philadelphia,
Adult Outpatient population varfes little from that:of clfents in resi-
“dentta) treatment -Up to 80% of the outpatient clients are stipulated '

to drug abuse treatment through probation/parole»or thevcourt system.

Centro De Vida, the outpatient program housed in the Spanish Speaking
, . . v . '

_Center, serves the Hispanic population Tiving in the Harrisburg area,

It provides both treatment and prevention services at the center, as

well as :t;lhin the local school and prison system. The bilingual bi-

cultural background of the staff at Centro De Vida has proven to be most -

successful in treating this historically under-served population

s

4”he newest outpatient program estabished {n 1980, Gaudenzia Westshore,
provides prevention and treatment services to the counties of Cumberland

and Perry.

Other Social Services

T J—

Other resident1al programs include a transit nal liv1ng fac1lity for
mentally disabled persons and a group home for adolescents who are {n
need of emergency shelter. These facilities serve a needy population
and provide an alternative to'institutionalized$care in a home-1ike
setting.

Gaudenzia also operates a Counseling Intervention program out.of‘the

Outreach faciiity in North Philadelphia. The program serves youth

RIC -~ 55
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whose home and faily sttuations require intervention Services. are
provided in the client s own home,, and focuses on the family as a unit

to help: preclude future prob]eins

Funding by Source
J o
: Funding for the Geudenzia progrns for FY 81 us priurin fee for service
or per diem. funding fro- state and county and Iocal authorities as. ue]l
" as client peyuents and’ contributions,fr,u- the community and local ,busi-
nesses. Foundaitio'n ;rents for one time specific projects totaled
$ 60,000.

i

ﬁ),veriuuent_l’unding' $1,417,073 .

Client Payments Clev0m
;o Third Party Payments 2,250

‘Contri‘,but’io\ns IR 90,660 .

Foundation Grants . 60,000 ’

The f oHowing charts are compiled from information reported in the

Comprehensive Plan for. Drug & Alcohol Treatment and Prevention Programs
for the City of Phi'lade'rphia 1981-1982

. -

PRIMARY DRUG AT INTAKE TO TREATMENT

- _Primary Drug ° Number ‘, . Number X
of Abuse B ’ .

Heroin 3552 20.6 3017 19.4
Other Opfates  ° 855 " 50 . 912 a4
Alcohol 9448 54.8 1158 - 56.6
Barbiturates 374 2.2 . . 409 2.0
Tranquilizers 209 ' 1.2 ~158 . 6.8
Other Sedatives 165 1.0 288 1.4
Amphetimines ) 927 5.4 1308 6.4
Cocaine . 87 5 - Sourn 0.6
Marijuana " 606 , 35 701, 3.4
Inhalants T e 8 60 0.3

Other * 638 3.7 )| 3.6




The follpwing charts are compiled from information reported
in the Comprehensive Plan for Drug & Alcoho! Treatment and
Prevention Programs for the City of Philadelphia, 1981-1982

Number of Heroin and A1l Drug Related Deaths

- 1977 - lm‘(Sqi-Mnull Data)

Time Perfod . Heroin Related AN Related
: " Deaths . ths -

15t 1977 N ' .
nd 1977 2 o 86
415t 1978 R - !
\2nd 1978 11 . 46
15t 1979 Y ) 69 .
2nd 1979 . "gs o 81
15t 1980 31 S

ERIC - .
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o The follbwing-chu‘tﬁ_.ire compiled from 1,nf6mt16n,report.ed

* in the Comprehensive Plan For Drug and Alcohol Treatwent and -
Prevention Programs for the City of Philadelphia 1981 - 1982. - '
N ‘Distribution of all Clients by Age, Race, and Sex
N Lot 1979 - 1980 (Fiscal Years)
‘ 1979 g . 1980
/ SEX : Number 3 e 1
ale 13993 © | 82.6 - 16886 83.3

‘emale - © 2952 17.4 3383 . 16.7
fotal . 16945 100.0 202.69  100.0

- - RACE Number . Numer ®
thite 5721 338 o 7446 ©36.7
Nack 10376 61.2 ‘1721 819
lispanic ' 814 X 1054 5.2
ither 34 .2 42 .2

\
atal 1694 100.0 20269 100.0
_ - »

¢ AGE " *" Number Number. , = %
ess than 18 . nr o, a2 1005 5.0
8 - 20 538 3.2 597 2.9
-2 , , 2517 14.9 2739 135
6-30 - 3603 2.3 o, M122 20.3
1- a4 5769 3.0 2% . . 357
" reater.than 44 3801 22.4 4572 22.6

. otal’ 16945 100.0

20269 100.0

B2 oo ’e !




The client population on January 21, 1982 was 132. The following table, '
shows primary drug ‘'of abuse, age and sex of those individuals stipulated to
the programv. . .

Item , .
'. Primary . k : T :
Orug of Abuse Heroin 22 .
o Alcohol ,
Barbiturates ¢ . ’ 3
Tranquilizers - 2
. Amphe tamines : 22
Cocaine 12
. Marijuana
‘Other v .
‘ Hallucinogens S _ " ro '
Sex  Male : ' < 64
) _ Female B §
.. Stipulated . ,
Clients A 75
Age , less than 18 — 7
18 - 20 o -
i “a-2. )
¢ 26 - 30 18
' 31 - 44 11
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o - : ' GAUDENZIA PROGRAMS - STATE-WIDE

R A St T
I T e et B

.

[y
.

=
B 5»92 %

“West- Shore - Polydrug
Qutpatient

*Concept-90 - Residential
Drug-Free L.
‘Centro de Vida - Outpatient
© #i-Tingual

4

“Gaudenzia House -

Free .

‘Vantage - Residential-
Alcoholic women with
children
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- Drug-Free

-Qatreach > Adult Qutpatien:
Adolescent Polydrug

-Omega House - Emergency
Sheliter
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' STATEMENT OF DR SIDNEY SHANKMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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. Senator SPECTER. Dr. Shankman, let me turn to you at this poinf

with the same essential (txestibn. What is your best recommenda- -
tion on how to deal with the juvenile drug problem?’

o
AND FOUNDER, SECOND GENESIS, ALEXANDRIA, VA, L
Dr. SHANKMAN. Well, as a child and adolescent peychiatrist, I

‘would like to state that it is my belief that drugs are a symptom of

a problem, rather than a problem per se. They are a masking
device. You can find almost any reason for the use of them. B
But when you find a youngster turning to drugs, I interpret that
as a signal to intervene, to find out of what they are a symptom.
You can explore by working through the schools. There were good

- teachers long before there were good child peychiatrists. With

not been infrequent at all to fin :
‘when they were in the second and third grades. There have been

teachers, working through the schools, working with the schools,
and working with the families, one can find out just of what they .
are a symptom. _ / ' -
Senator SPECTER. What is your experience as to the earliest point
that you have seen anyone dealing with drugs? - ,
Dr. SHANKMAN. At Second Genesis, we are a residential treat-
ment facility. Our youngest in residence at the present time.is 13.
However, in the history of our youth who have been there, it has
X youngsters who started into drugs

some cases documented where these kids started using when they -
were actually 6 years old. . , : :

Senator SPecTER. What suggestions would you have, Dr. Shank-
man, for Federal action on this subject? '

Dr. SHANKMAN. Well, I would like to start by expanding what .
Judge Milligan said. I believe you have to'show that a program -
works, and if one proves it can work and that it is practical, that
you continue that program. It would be presumptuous of me or any
other mental health professional to speak of any one program
being the panacea.

The therapeutic. community, whick is a highly structured, non-
permissive, chemically free program, does work. It distresses me
that people don't realize it costs about $21 a day to keep one of
these youths in our program in any of the therapeutic communi-
ties, yet, it costs about $40 a day to incarcerate a youth. We have
seen that traditional psychotherapeutic approaches with character
disorders of juvenile delinquents generally do not work very well in
a psychiatric hospital which costs $300 to $400 a day.

So just in terms of cost effectiveness, not to mention human costs
which cannot be calculated, it would seem to me that emphasis on
such pragmatic programs as therapeutic communities should be in-
vestigated. They have proven track records to show that they
really do work. " : ;

I can also tell you as a child psychiatrist, and an adolescent psy-
chiatrist, very much in keeping with Judge Milligan’s statement, if
you want to see a frightened child, you show me an undisciplined
one. I am not sure I agreeswith Judge Milligan’s ways of imposing
structure. But I do think it is imperative that kids do have struc:

ture and that the rules be understandable and meetable. 1 am not
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. -+sure about the peychological effects of jogging, or with all due re- .
spect, that prayer, in itself is going to resolve any issue. I think
~that  they have their. merits. I do not think that we can impose
themon people. - . = - = ' . R O
We can impose a healthy structure as we, throughout the United
States, in programs like Second Genesis, Gaudenzia  House, have’
shown, have demonstrated, we have lectured about theraputic com-
munities throughout the world. The reason for the success of the
program is based on the fact not that it is profound, but that it is
" practical and it is duplicatable. o N o
’ Sg}nator Specter. How many people do you have at Second Gen-
esis’ - S
 Dr. SHANKMAN. At Second Genesis we have about 280 people in
residence. However, I prefer fire prevention to firefighting. You
asked earlier about what one can do in the community. Our youth
have a commitment not only to themselves but to the community
at large. And to this end they go out into the communities and
they talk in the schools. - ]

You can see some of our Second. Genesis kids sitting here. If a
kid, who might have been captain of a football team or basketball
team, goes into the high schools and tells other kids what drug
abuse is really all about, and I do not mean lectures in pharmacol-
ogy, they will listen. ’ : -

As a matter of fact,.in northern Virginia we sent our youth
throughout the area. In public health and in medicine, Senator,
you measure your success not by the number of cases you have but
the number of cases you do not have. This is called prevention.

Senator SeecTER. How do you measure the number of cases you

do not have?
- Dr. SHANKMAN. Well, when you send these youngsters out to the -
schools and they talk to the youth and they explain to them what
drug abuse is all about, this is fire prevention. You can help kids to
turn their lives around. In adolescence, the concept of peer pres-
sure and role modeling is important. When a student can see some-
one who has become involved in drug abuse, who has expressed to
these kids what he has done, it becomes a very important educa-
tional tool. ’

In northern Virginia, all the high schools got together. As an act
of appreciation to the kids of Second Genesis for their help in drug
education, students put on a play and the proceeds went to the pro-
gram. We will not charge for our community services. The benefit
performance was an act of appreciation for what Second Genesis
had done for the youngsters throughout northern Virginia.

Our programs extend in Maryland, Washington and throughout
Virginia. :

Senator SPecTEr. Dr. Shankman and Ms. Grodenchik, I would
very much appreciate it if this dialog could be continued after the
hearing with Mr. Cohen and the staff. I am sorry that we eannot
go further. We are over time now and we have to assemble in the
Senate Chamber for the joint session.

I have great admiration for the work of these residential treat-
ment cen%s(had a substantial hand in getting the first grant of
State money to establish Gaudenzia house in Westchester, Pa.,
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back in 1968, and I certainly do commend you both for your efforts.

I want to thank you very much for coming here today.
Dr. SHANKMAN. Thank you for permitting it.
Senator SpecTER. Thank you. ’

[The prepared statement of Dr. Shankman follows:]
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" PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. SIDNEY SHAMKMAN

SENATOR SPECTER AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE, MY NAME IS
Sromey SHANKMAN, M.D. I aM Executive DirecTor ofF Seconp GENESIs,
INC., A PRIVATE, NON-PROFIT, RESIDENTFAL, THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITY

FOR THE TREATMENT OF ADOLESCENT AND ADULT DRUG ABUSERS.. IN.THE A

MARYLAND, VIRGINIA, AND HASHINGTON, D.C. AReAs. 1AM ALsO A
BOARD QUALIFIED PSYCHIATRIST IN BOTH ADULT PSYCHIATRY, AND CHILD
AND ADOLESCENT PSYCHIATRY.- ' '

In AN EFFORT TO. ASSIST THE SUBCOMMITTEE'S INVESTIGATION OF THE
I$SUES SURROUNDING JUVENILE DRUG ABUSE, | WOULD LIKE TO BRIEFLY
DISCUSS THE PROBLEM, THE ADOLESCENT, AND THE SOLUTION WE SEEK AT
SECOND GFNESIS} )‘U

THE PROBLEM OF DRUG ABUSE AMONG ADOLESCENTS IS A/DRASTIC ONE.
IT IS A PROBLEM THAT HAS NEVER BEEN. MORE SERIOUS. IT exists IN THE
CITY AND IN THE SUBURBS, AND CROSSES ALL SOCIOECONOMIC STRATAS.

MO COMMUNITY SHOULD DELUDE ITSELF INTO BELIEVING ITS YOUTH ARE
iMMUNE. NOT ONLY DOES THE PROBLEM APPEAR TO BE SPREADING, BUT IT
1S OUR OBSERVATION THAT THE AVERAGE AGE FOR INITIAL DRUG CONTACT
HAS STEADILY DECLINED, AND ITVSHOQLD BE NOTED THAT INVOLVEMENT
WITH ANY ONE SUBSTANCE, INCLUDING MARIJUANA, GREATLY INCREASES THE
LI1KELIHOOD OF BECOMING INVOLVEwalTH OTHER SUBSTANCES.

ALTHOUGH THERE 1S LITTLE RESEARCH ESTABLISHING A CAUSAL
RELATIONSHIP IN CURRENT TRENDS, IT APPEARS EVIDENT THAT AS THE
AGE OF INITIAL DRUG CONTACT HAS DECLINED, THE INVOLVEMENT OF
JUVENILES IN SERIOUS CRIME HAS INCREASED., IN A RECENT UPI RELEASE,
BaLTiMORE CouNTy PoLicE "CHIEF CORNELIUS BREWAN sAiD U4 PERCENT OF
MAJOR CRIMES IN THE COUNTY LAST YEAR WERE COMMITTED BY PEOPLE UNDER
18 veARs OF AGE AND SAID 20 PERCENT OF THE YOUTHS COMMITTING
CRIMES WERE ON PAROLE OR PROBATION.” IF THE YOUNG-PEOPLE | WORK
WITH ARE ANY INDICATION, | MUST BELIEVE THAT LOCAL JURISDICTIONS
ACROSS THE COUNTRY ARE FACING THE SAME DILEMMA, THESE TEENAGERS
TELL ME ABOUT REPEATED SUSPENSIONS, DR AS THEY CALL THEM -

"VACATIONS,"” FROM SCHOOL BEFORE ANYONE TOOK A FIRM POSITION
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‘WITH THEM 'OR TRIED TO HELP THEMY AND THEY RECQUNT EIGHT TO TEN

APPEARANCES lN'JUVENlLE COURf BEFORE ANYONE HELD THEM TRULY
+ACCOUNTABLE FOR THEIR ACTIONS. WELMUST BEGIN TO FACE THE FACT
THAT WE HAVE WORKED SO JARD TO PROTECT OUR YOUTH THAT. NE HAVE
ACTUALLY HURT BOTH THEM, AND OURSELVES, IN THE PROCESS.

-MUCKH OF THIS RELATES DIRECTLY TO THE DYNAHICS OF ADOLESCEE}E:

- WHICH 1S, AT BEST,/AN EYTREMELY LABILE PERIOD DURING NHICH THE

YOUTH-MOVES AWAY FROM THE FAMILY AND TOWARD THE PEER GROUP AS THE
PRIMARY SOURCE OF SUPPORT AND ACCEPTANCE. THIS ‘0CCURS IN THE
'NAME OF SEEKING FREEDOM AND INDEPENDENCE, WHICH THE ADOLESCENT
LOOSELY DEFINES AS THE CAPACITY TO TAKE A HAND IN HIS OWN
DEVELOPMENT. ALL T0O FReoueﬁTLv, THE ADOLESCENT CONFUSES FREEDOM
WITH REIELLINE THE LATTER PROVIDES A FALSE SENSE OF
INDEPENDENCE. UNDER THE GUISE OF SEEKING INDEPENDENCE, THE
ADOLESCENT THUS REBELS AGAINST TﬂAT WHICH ACTUALLY INSURES HIS
FREEDOM AND INDEPENDENCE --- THAT IS, RESPONSIBILITY;

THERE 1S AN ADDITIONAL “SYNDROME" WHICH IS QUITE RECURRENT
AND CAN FURTHER EXACERBATE THE ADOLESCENT'S nl;gnﬁA. IT occurs
MOST FREQUENTLY AMONG THOSE PARENTS WHO HAVE EXPERIENCED “HARD
‘TIMES” AS A CHILD, AS A RESULT THERE IS A TENDENCY TO PROTECT
THEIR OWN CHILDREN FROM EXPERIENC ING THOSE SAME STRESSES. IN ,

THE PROCESS, THEY ACTUALLY DEPRIVE THE CHILD OF THAT WHICH THEY
-
DID HAVE, EVEN IN THE WORST OF TIMES ——- RESPONSIBILITY AND

DISCIPLINE. AS A CHILD PSYCHIATRIST, [- HAVE LEARNED THAT AN
UNDISCIPLINED CHILD IS A FRIGHTENED CHILD.

ON THE ONE HAND, THE ADOLESCENT MAY BE ABLE TO RESOLVE THESE
CONFLICTS, IN AN EFFECTIVE MANNER, WITH LITTLE OR NO INTERVENTION,
EXCEPT FROM THE FAMILY. ON THE OTHER HAND, WHAT MAY EMERGE 1S
EVIDENCE OF A DEEPLY INGRAINED, MALADAPTIVE PATTERN OF BEHAVIOR,
THAT 1S PERCEPTIBLY DIFFERENT IN QUALITY FROM PSYCHOTIC OR
NEUROTIC SYMPTOMS. THIS IS BROADLY REFERRED TO AS A PERSONALITY
'DISORDER, OR CHARACTER DISORDER. . IT IS GENERALLY OF LONG
DURATION, BECOMING RECOGNIZABLE AROUND THE TIME OF ADOLESCENCE .
THE SUBCATEGORIES OF PERSONALITY DISORDERS 'MOST FREQUENTLY SEEN




IN A THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITY.SUCH AS SECOND GENESIS ARE THE

o ANTISOCIAL OR DELINGUENT PERSONALITY, THE PASSIVE-AGGRESSIVE = - - ‘ [ 4
PERSONALITY, AND THE AGGRESSIVE REACTIQN 70 ADOLESCENCE. N
THE PERSON WHO- DEVELOPS A CHARACTER -DI.SORDER 1S DIFFERENTIATED
FROM THE NEUROTIC BY HIS MANNER OF “LURCHING" FROM ONE sst—xﬁpossn
CONFLICT TO ANOTHER, AND- BY THE REPETITIVENESS. WITH WHICH HE
APPLIES PARTIAL, INEFFECTIVE SOLUTIONS TO THESE CONFLICTS.  Many
PERSONS WITH CHARACTER DISORDERS BELIEVE THAT THEIR SURVIVAL
ACTUALLY- DEPENDS ON THEIR CONTINUING TO BEHAVE AS THEY HAVE
ALWAYS BEHAVED. v
ALJHOUGHZTRADITIONAL PSYCHOTHERAPEUTIC APPROACHES HAVE HAD
LITTLE SUCCESS IN WORKING WITH INDIVIDUALS WITH PERSONALITY
DISORDERS, 1T WOULD BE PRESUMPTUOUS OF ANY MENTAL HEALTH
PROFESSIONAL TO PROFESS THAT THEIRS IS THE ONLY APPROACH TO

" THIS FQRMIDABLE PROBLEM, . ’ L

. 1
WHAT | PROPOSE, 1S TO TELL YOU ABOUT ONE APPROACH WITH A o
- 4 ‘ - -
PROVEN TRACK RECORD OF SUCCESS --- THE THERAPEUTIC COMMUN1TY.

THIS 1S THE MODALITY THAT IS USED AT SECOND GENESIS AND
APPROXIMATELY 300 OTHER PROGRAMS OPERATING IN 47 STATES.
THE SECRET BEHIND OUR SUCCESS 1S NOT THAT WE ARE PROFOUND,
BUT RATHER THAT WE ARE PRACTICAL. IF, As WE BELIEVE, PEER GROUP
PRESSURE 1S THE MAJOR CATALYTIC FORCE IN THE ADOLESCENT'S LIFE,
o WHY CAN'T WE USE A SIMILAR PEER GROUP PRESSURE TO HELP THE
INDIVIDUAL. CHANGE IMMATURE SOCIAL BEHAVIOR, ACQUIRE SQCIALLY .
AccsPTEprvALuss, AND ACHIEVE A MORE SATISFACTORY ADJUSTMENT.
THlstggéTHE ESSENCE OF THE PROGRAM WE OFFER. .

~ ) THE THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITY ‘1S .,A GROUP OF INDIVIDUALS LIVING

AND WORKING TOGETHER IN A HIGHLY STRUCTURED, 2U-HOUR-PER-DAY
SETTING THAT SERVES AS A "UNIVERSITY"” FOR SELF-AWARENESS,
SELF-REALI1ZATION, AND RESULTING BEMAVIORAL CHANGES., FACH
INDIVIDUAL LEARNS THAT PAST, PRESENT, AND FUTURE BEMAVIOR IS A
RESULT OF FREE CHOICE, AND THAT WE ARE ULTIMATELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR OUR OWN CONDITION, TO MAKE CHOICES, AND TO ACCEPT THE

e . 6 '.
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CONSEQUENCES YOF THOSE CHOICES IS PRIMARY TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF

, "RESPONSIBILIT) IN EACH RESIDENT. IN THIS DEMANDING SOCIAL SYSTEM,

EACH INDIVIDUAL FUNCTIONS AS AN_INTEGRAL,E@RT,'NITH A DEFINITE = .

ROLE. SELF-DISCIPLINE MUST BEGIN TO DEVELOP IF ONE IS TO MEET

INCREASING PEER EXPECTATIONS, AND ONE'S RESPONSIBILITIES WITHIN

THE COMMUNITY,, . A - o
* As.THE ADOLESCENT DEMONSTRATES LEVELS OF SELF-AWARENESS,

RESPONSIBILITY, AND DISCIPLINE APPROPRIATE TO THE COMMUNITY-

AT-LARGE, HE 1§ ASSISTED (THROUGH CONTINUED TREATMENT, FAMILY'
THERAPY, AND VOCATIONAL AND EDUCATIONAL COUNSELING) "IN TRANSFERRING

THE SENSE OF BELONGING HE HAS DEVELOPED, TO THE LARGER COMMUNITY,

| HAVE INCLUDED AN EXTENSIVE: OVERVIEN OF THE SECOND GENESIS
PROGRAM AS AN ADDENDUM TO MY TESTXMONY, AND WOULD APPRECIATE IT
BEING INCLUDED AS PART OF THE RECORD.

[ ¢

THE SUCCESS OF THE THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITY ALSO CARRLES A
RELATIVELY LOW PRICE 1AG. [T cosTs APPROXIMAYELY $21 PER DAY TO
TREAT AN ADOLESCENT AT SECOND GENESI¥. THIS IS IN SHARP CONTRAST .

70 THE APPROXIMATELY $40 PER DAY COST OF DETENTION, OR THE
$300-%400 PER DAY COST OF HOSPITALIZATION,

FISCAL COSTS AND SAVINGS ARE EASILY CALCULATED AND REDUCED
- TO FIGURES --- NOT SO HUMAN COSTS AND SAVINGS. [T IS TRAGIC

* THAT, AT A TIME WHEN NEED IS GREATEST, PROGRAMS ARE FULL TO
OVERFLOWING AND FACING CUTBACKS. To CITE A FEW EXAMPLES:
* GATEWAY FOUNDATION IN CHICAGO HAS 250 FILLED TREATMENT
SLOTS AND.44 CURRENTLY ON WAITING LISTS,
. * SPECTRUM HOUSE IN MASSACHUSETTS HAS ONLY 40 TREATMENT.
SLOTS BUT 1S CARRYING 51 RESIDENTS IN TREATMENT,‘AﬁD
HAS BEEN INFORMED THAT FUNDING IS TO BE CUT BACK TO

30 SLOTS.
* IN THE STATE OF MEW York, 3,000 DRuG TREATMENT SLOTS

ace

ARE SLATED TO BE CUT THIS YEAR. -

? ®* [N MASSACHUSETTS WHERE THERE WERE 150 TREATMENT PROGRAMS

2 YEARS AGO, THERE ARE CURRENTLY ONLY 115 AND BY NEXT

«

YEAR PROJECTIONS INDICATE THERE WILL BE NO MORE THAN 80.
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IN MY OWN 'PROGRAM, Sscoun Gsnssxs, OUR conaxnsn CONTRACTS

FUND 255 TREATMENT 'SLOTS. WE ARE CARRYING MPPROXIMATELY 280
RESIDENTS IN TREATMENT, AND HAVE AT LEAST 55 OTHERS ON WAITING

L1sTs., FOR THE TIME BEING OUR TREATMENT SLOTS HAVE NOT BEEN
CUT. INSTEAD, WE HAVE BEEN TOLD TO TREAT THE SAME NUMBER OF
PEOPLE WITH 10 PERCENT LESS MONEY. A SITUATION WHICH IS FURTHER
EXACERBATED BY THE FACT THAT, PRIOR T8, THESE CUTS, OUR ACTUAL

TREATMENT COSTS ALREADY EXCEEDED WHAT WE WERE PAID BY °
- APPROXIMATELY 16.4 PERCENT, ' . : :
I CANNOT BEGIN TO ESTIMATE THE NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE o

NATIONWIDE, WHO ARE WAITING, OR NEED, TREATMENT, THE guLTI-
FACETED PROBLEMS OF JUVENILE DRUG Aéuss\AND JUVENILE CRIME
DEMAND ACTION. THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITIES, SUCH AS SECOND GENESIS,
ARE ONE MEANS OF ACTING EF%;CT!VELY. : .
THANK YOU, SENATOR SPECTER, FOR TAKING THE T!ME'To,Fodus’
ON THESE ISSUES, AND CALLING ATYENTION TO THE NEED FOR ) a /
SOLUTIONS. | APPRECIATE THE OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY, AND WOULD
MAKE MYSELF AVAILABLE IF, | CAN BE OF FURTHER ASSISTANCE TO THE

MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE.

PROGRAM OVERVIEW OF éECOND'GENESIS, INC.

P
B Second Genesis, a private, nonprofjt, professional treatment
agency, specializes in providing rehabilitation-treatment services
_to drug abusers, offenders, and others who have established non-
coping, irresponsible lifestyles. Such treatment is provided
through both outpatient and inpatient components, with therapeutic
community, residential trcatment being our primarv rehabilitation
approach. Treatment in a therapeutic cormmunityv c¢onsists of a
highly structured, thoroughly supervised, twenty-four-hour- -per-
day, chemical-free residential program which typically takes
eighteen to twenty-four months to complete.

The Second Genesis program has often been described as a
school which educates people who have never learned how to live
and feel worthy without hurting themselves and others. Second
Genesis helps people who have. tried again and acain- to oct what
they wanted from life and have continually defeated themselves.
The principle combines the basic and universal human values of

» knowledge, love, honesty and work with the dvnamic instrument
of intense group pressure in order to recognize and help correct
the personality defects which preevent people from living by
these values. 'The results are rehabilitation so that the
individual may reenter his or her community as an independent
and productxve person.

ERIC B
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The Second Genesis program had its origin in June, 1969, as
the drug abuse component Of the Alexandria Community Mental Health
Center. At that time, the Center received. a contract from the
National Institute of Mental Health for a community-action oriented
.aftercare program for narcotic addicts from Northern Virginia who
weré committed to the Narcotic Addict Rehabilitation Act (NARA)
Program by a Federal Court. . a

It was early recognized that in certain instances outpatient

care, with urine surveillance checks, was not enough. A residential
e therapeutic community program was initiated in mid-March of 1970.

Named by its occupants, The Second Genesis, this program had as

its goal the complete rehabilitation of its residents to a pro-

‘ductive rather than ,an enslaved way of life. This goal was

&ccomplished through its rigorous therapeutic regimen, a highly s

structured, nonpermissive, self-help program. S “

Because of the essential expansion of and demand for- the .

services of the Second Genesis therapeutic community, not only

from Alexandria but from the adjacent jurisdictions, it became
necessary to separate this vital comvonent of services frdm the
Alexandria Community Mental Health Center to permit the
regionalization of programming. At its January 11,1971, ' .. a
meeting,’ the Advisory Board of the Alexandria Community Mental
Health Center endorsed the separation of the Second Genesis from

the Alexandria Community Mental Health Center; the Board further
endorsed the concept of transfer and contiduation of the drug
treatment and rehabilitation program (including the NARA contract)
*within the framework of a private, nonprofit corporation, Second
_Genesis, Inc. Thus, Second Genesis was incorporated. under Section
501C of the Federal Internal Revenue Code, and in June, 1971, it

was formally established as an independent organization.

Second Genesis now provides treatment rehabilitation_gervices
primarily to the Washington, D. C., Maryland and Virginia .areas.

The program is staffed by a multidisciplinary professional -
group which includes a staff psychiatrist, g Ph.D. level clinical
psychologist, master's degree mental health ¥nd vocational
rehdbilitation counselors, learning disabilities specialists,
addiction specialists and a research analyst. The facilities
are staffed by individuals, many of whom have completed treatment
communities like Second Genesis and have gone on for further
training as mental health professionals., This diversity of
specialized skills permits the selective application of group
therapy and individual counseling, educational and vocational
services. -

The Second Genesis therapeutic communities are residential
rehabilitation centers which provide a family-like setting for
persons regardless of age, sex, race, ethnic group, or socio-
economic status.all striving for the common goal of self-reliance
at the same time discovering love and self-respect. .

Residential treatment is implemented through two treatment
phases with each phase usually lasting about a year. During
Phase I, the resident's entire functional routine takes place
within the facility, with treatment emphasis being placed on the
development of responsible behavior and attitudes. Each resident
is responsible for an in-facility job function, the nature of
which changes regularly according to the therapeutic value of
the specific job. - Each resident participates in regular, three- s
times-per-week, encounter group therapy, and individudal therapy . v
is provided on an as needed basis throughoUt the day. During . o
Pha: + II, encounter- therapy is reduced and. weekly psychodynamic

EHQJ!:‘ vl | N . féi].
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© . N
Greep Lherapy becomes a new parL of the therapeutic reglmen.
In addition, residents recéive vocational assessment and
counseling, followed by vocational assistance in defining and
implementing an.occupational plan. gPrior to entering Phase III,
the outpaticnt phase of the rehabilitation process, a resident
must have stable, inconme producing ‘employment, an ample savings
account, an approvedercsidence outside .of the program, .and the

.individual must be consideread cllnlcally ready for responsible,

;ndcpcndcnt functioning., s Phase III individpals are reguired to .
participatein weekly outpatlcnt group therapy and urine sur-
veillance for a three to Slx month period prior to graduation

from the proaram,

Second Genesis is funded primarily through contractual
arrangements with: The State of Maryland, Drug Abuse Admlnxstratxon,
Department of Juvenile Scrvices, and. Department of Soclal Services:
The District of Columbia), Department of Human Resources; Prince
George's County, Maryland; Hontgomery County, Maryland; The .Common*
wealth of Virginia, Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation,
and the Departments of Social Services and Youth Serviceg. Payment
for services is rendered according to the specific terms of each:
contract; rurther, each funding sou:ce Has its own specific
administrative cligibility criteria which must be met by the
individual in order to be funded. Supplementary funding is
received in the form of cash and in-kind contributions from ‘the

“general community.

Y.

a
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“The rchaleJLatlon pVO'Yam at Second Genesis consists of the
" following: ’ ’

,
f - A. -Diagnpsis and Evaluation N

: - /o ; : O
Sccond Genesls, Inc., offers a wide range of diagnostic

procedures. These procedures include comprehensive social -
histories, psychiatric cxamination, psychological testing and
assessment, and vocational-cducatiopal histories. .
Rueferrals are generally accepted from @uUuQ’zcd
representatives of fgderal, state and local governments; although
any indiviaual interested - in rehabilitation may contact Second
Genwsis darectly.  EBach cindidate will) [irst be interviewed by a

stafi counsclor in order fo cecllect background <iata and to conduct

a preliminary scrooening of sujtability for participation in the
proiram. Hest, the candidate will be seéen for a psychiatric and .
psychological cvaluaticon in order to assess the deqgree and’extent. '
of paychiatric-nsychological disability as well as to neasurc the
motivation of the condidale for rchabilitation. ‘The data collected
w1ll then be discussed al a regular diegnostic conferenge with a
p'"ch1utyxat psychologist, counsclor, addiciion specialist and

other professionals prescernt. Based on this conference, a clinical
diepositior-recommendation will be made as to whether or not the
candidate s suitablé for trcatmenY.  This rccommondatibn when

necessary, 1s then-presented to an.official of the court system
for. dasposition.?y Ty L

1f the éendidate is found suitable for treatment, he/she
will then be orovjden with a uéneral physical, inc]ucinq routine
laboratory tests. “If the findinas of the physical examination
are unrcmarkable, including a dotcxmlndtaaﬂ that the candidate is
without a physioloqgical nced for detoxiflication, residential
treatment @ill be initiated. For those candidates regyuiring
detoxificetiun before entering the facility Sccond Genesis staff
will "assist the rndividual and/or the author zed representative’
in arrancging for detoxification. ‘ -

v
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Residents placed in the program by the court systcem come
" to us after a comprehensive joint evaluation and mutual recommendation.
Full cooperation_and communication are present throughout the.
trcatment process. -

B. Trecatment and Rchabilitation
[4

) The primary modality for trcatment utilized in the
residence is the therapcutic community interaction. The daily
activities of the facility arc under the direction of cvpericnced
addiction specialists, who in turn are supervised by a psychiatrist
and clinical psychologist. This tcam mects frequently during the
week for patient staffings in order to continually monitor the N
psvchological growth of cach residcént. Each fa&iligy has twenty-
four hour coverage prowided by professional staff and regponsible
older residents. '

Therapy is a twenty-four-hour-a-day process in the
dommunity. Bcginning with morning mecting at 9:00 a.m., every
mowent of the resident's day is designed to enhince, stimulatc,
and aceelerate personal growth leading to seli-responsibility,
freocdom from chemical abusce and elimination of antisucial )
behavior. TFollowing morning mecting, the resident reports to
his job assiunment until lunch. After lunch, all residents
attend scminers, designed to broaden t scope of the socially
handicapned drug abusers. Returning t§ his job function afiter
seminar awd remaining there until dinner, which is held at
approximately 5:30'p.m., the resident propares himsell for
encounter thorapy three times a weck on Monday, Wedneusday, and
Friday cvenings.8&f on indiyidual has not-finished hiah school,
he will attend clagges in the facility on Tuasday and. Thursday
to obtain the Gengral Lquivalency Diploma (CcEb) .. ’

hroughout the resident's stay in the facility,
unscheduled urine samples are collected and analyzed to insure
a chemical-frec environment. Pirect counscling is wrovided for
personal, educalional, social and vocational problews on cither
an individual or group basis.

Special treatment, bounscling, and orientation scrvices
aré scheduled for the familics of residents.

Wherever possible; emphasis is given to the continuance
of education cven while a resident of the house. This takes the
form of preparation for thc GED, or actual matriculation, while
a resident, in a local high school or university.

When, in the opinion of the professional staff of Second

Genesis, a patient is recady to begin his gradual reentry to the
..community, he will be provided with vocational counseling directed
" toward career development and job placement or further educational

endeavors. Budgetary planning and guidance will also be afforded
him as he prepares himself to live outside the therapeutic
community facility. o :

When the patient has graduated from the Second Genesis,
Inc., therapeutic community,” follow-up will continue until such
time as the professional staff considers him ready for discharge
from the program. '

C. Administrative Services [
(1) " At regular intervals, patient progress reports on

all residents are forwarded to the appropriate court and: °
governmental officials, when required. | .
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(2) Specxal reports Wwill be séent whenever SLgnxflcant
change takes place in the oatient's status, i.e., when ‘he leaves
the program before treatment is completed or is droppe¢ from the
program, when he graduates from the therapeutic communitv and
when he is discharged from the program. Those to be notified pf
such changes by Second Genesis, Inc., will include, when appropriate,
the family, probation officer, and the court system.

D. Family and Community Participation

. An important goal of Second Genesis is to create community
" awareness and understanding of its concepts and ideals as well as

of the characteristics and’ problems of its resxdents Eollowing /oy
are some of the provisions made toward this goal

(1) Twice éach month, the parents of residents and other
interested citizens meet in what we term ,(cerebration sessions."
In thdse sessions, concepts of group interaction similar to those
used inside.thc house are applied toward the understanding of such
topics as drug abuse, behavioral problems of residents, and
emotional growth;

- ~

(2) Once a month, the residents of Second Genesis hold
an open house. This gives friends, relatives, businessmen, and
interested citizens the opportunity of meeting the staff and
resident$, and the opportunity to see and learn about what we are
trying to accomplish;

v .

{3) The staff and residents of Sé¢cond Genesis readily
accept invitations to speak to sponsored groups who wish to know
about our program. bHany times this provides an opportunity for
an open dialogue between Second Genesis and the-cbmmunity. We
have 'spokén to many different groups o&vppopleu -at grade schools, e s
high schools, colledes, and various youth, church and civic
organizations;

(4) Second Genesis participates in many charitable
community endeavors on a regular basis, such as sponsoring
Christmas parties for underprivilegyud children;

(S) Second Genesis' staff provides formal group therapy
to the spouscs or parents of the residents. The goal is to assure
the level of communication and growth necessary between a resident
and his or her family for the transition from inpatient to out-
patient status to be successful;

(6) Twtce a month, families and Jntorostod people from
the community are proviced an ¢pportunity to meebt with the staff
in order to gain an understanding of the level of communication
and growth being devéloped in the treatment proces

REFERRALS
'

Anyone can méke referrals by contacting the Intake Counselors
located at the following addresses:

Second Genesis, Inc. Second Genesis, Inc. v
1204 Prince Strect s 4720 Montgomery Lane

Aléxandria, Virginia 22314Suite 502

(703) 683-4610 ' Bethesda, Maryland 20014

Mon.-Fri. 9-5 . (301) 656-1545

Mon.-Fri. 9-5

. » Vel
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Senator SpacTEr. The hearing is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 10:30 a.m., the subcommitte was adjourned.]
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